
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL 
18 DECEMBER 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Council - 18 December 2019



 

 
 

 
Oaklands Road  
Haywards Heath  
West Sussex  
RH16 1SS 

 
Switchboard:  01444 458166 

 
DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 

www.midsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Working together for a better Mid Sussex 

 
 

 
10 December 2019 

 

Unless a majority of the Council resolve to extend the meeting before 10.00 pm it will 
automatically end at 10.00 pm in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 17.2. 

 
 
To all Members of the Council, 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the MID SUSSEX DISTRICT COUNCIL to be 
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at these offices on WEDNESDAY, 18TH DECEMBER, 2019 at 
7.00 pm to transact the following business: 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 

KATHRYN HALL 
Chief Executive 

 

 

  Pages 
 

1.   Opening Prayer 
 

 

2.   To receive questions from members of the public pursuant to 
Council Procedure Rule 9. 
 

 

3.   To confirm Minutes of the meeting of Council held on 6 
November 2019. 
 

5 - 10 

4.   To receive declarations of Interest from Members in respect of 
any matter on the Agenda. 
 

 

5.   To consider any items that the Chairman of the Council agrees 
to take as urgent business. 
 

 

6.   Chairman's Announcements. 
 

 

7.   Review of Members' Allowances 2020/2021. 
 

11 - 32 

8.   Changes to the Existing Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/21 
and the Introduction of a Banded Income Approach. 
 

33 - 62 

9.   Council Taxbase 2020/21. 63 - 68 

Council - 18 December 2019



 
 

 

10.   Programme of Meetings 2020/2021. 
 

69 - 72 

11.   Recommendations from Cabinet held on 18 November 2019. 
 

73 - 74 

12.   To receive the Leader's Report. 
 

 

13.   Report of Cabinet Members, including questions pursuant to 
Council Procedure Rule 10.1. 
 

 

14.   Questions from Members pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 
10.2 
 

 

 
 
 
To: Members of Council: Councillors C Trumble (Chairman), M Belsey (Vice-Chair), G Allen, J Ash-Edwards, 

R Bates, J Belsey, A Bennett, L Bennett, A Boutrup, P Bradbury, P Brown, H Brunsdon, P Budgen, 
R Cartwright, P Chapman, R Clarke, E Coe-Gunnell White, P Coote, M Cornish, R Cromie, J Dabell, 
R de Mierre, B Dempsey, S Ellis, R Eggleston, A Eves, L Gibbs, I Gibson, S Hatton, J Henwood, S Hicks, 
S Hillier, T Hussain, R Jackson, J Knight, C Laband, Andrew Lea, Anthea Lea, J Llewellyn-Burke, 
A MacNaughton, G Marsh, J Mockford, A Peacock, C Phillips, M Pulfer, R Salisbury, S Smith, A Sparasci, 
L Stockwell, D Sweatman, N Walker, R Webb, N Webster and R Whittaker 
 

 
 

Council - 18 December 2019



Minutes of a meeting of Council 
held on Wednesday, 6th November, 2019 

from 7.00 pm - 8.00 pm 

Present: C Trumble (Chairman) 
M Belsey (Vice-Chair) 

G Allen 
J Ash-Edwards 
R Bates 
J Belsey 
A Bennett 
L Bennett 
P Bradbury 
P Brown 
H Brunsdon 
P Budgen 
R Cartwright 
P Chapman 
R Clarke 
E Coe-
Gunnell White 
P Coote 

M Cornish 
R de Mierre 
B Dempsey 
R Eggleston 
A Eves 
I Gibson 
S Hatton 
J Henwood 
S Hicks 
S Hillier 
R Jackson 
J Knight 
C Laband 
Andrew Lea 
J Llewellyn-Burke 

A MacNaughton 
G Marsh 
J Mockford 
A Peacock 
C Phillips 
M Pulfer 
R Salisbury 
S Smith 
A Sparasci 
L Stockwell 
N Walker 
R Webb 
N Webster 
R Whittaker 

Absent: Councillors A Boutrup, R Cromie, J Dabell, S Ellis, L Gibbs, 
T Hussain, Anthea Lea and D Sweatman 

1. OPENING PRAYER

The opening prayer was read by the Vice-Chairman.

2. TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC PURSUANT TO
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 9.

None.

3. TO CONFIRM MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD ON 25
SEPTEMBER 2019.

The minutes of the meeting of Council held on 25 September 2019 were agreed as a
correct record of the meeting.

4. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF
ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA

None.

Council - 18 December 2019 5

Agenda Item 3



5. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL AGREES
TO TAKE AS URGENT BUSINESS.

None.

6. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman noted the success of the Mid Sussex Applauds Awards 2019 and
thanked the Officers for their role in delivering it. He drew Members attention to his
recent engagements detailed on the Council’s website, noting particularly the recent
visit of HRH the Duchess of Cornwall to the Bolney Wine Estate. He mentioned a
number of initiatives and reminded Members that charity collection boxes were
available and that there would be a Christmas raffle held at the next Council meeting.
Any donations of prizes from Members would be most welcome. He also reminded
Members that the December Council meeting would now be held on Wednesday 18
December.

7. STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY.

Councillor Andrew Lea moved the item, noting that it was obligatory for the Council to
have a Licensing Policy. The policy had been reviewed by the Scrutiny Committee for
Community, Customer Services and Service Delivery and had been the subject of
public consultation. The item was seconded by Councillor Webster who confirmed
that amendments had been made following comments made by the Scrutiny
Committee Members.

The Chairman took Members to the recommendation which was agreed.

RESOLVED

That Council:

Adopts amendments to the Licensing Policy attached in Appendix 1 to form the
updated Statement of Licensing Policy from 1st January 2020.

8. UPDATED POLICY ON LICENSING OF SEX ESTABLISHMENTS.

The Solicitor to the Council introduced the report noting that p.62 paragraph 2.3
should include Newtimber, Pyecombe, Poynings and Fulking. These villages will be
added to a revised version.

Councillor Andrew Lea moved the item noting that it was good practice to have such
a policy. He confirmed it had been reviewed by the Scrutiny Committee for
Community, Customer Services and Service Delivery and had been the subject of
public consultation. The item was seconded by Councillor Webster.

The Chairman took Members to the recommendation which was agreed.

RESOLVED

That Council:

Council - 18 December 2019 6



Adopts the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 2019 in Appendix 1 to form the 
updated Statement of Policy for Sex Establishment Venues from the 28th November 
2019. 

9. TO RECEIVE THE LEADER'S REPORT

The Leader confirmed his recent attendance at a number of meetings to ensure the 
District’s voice and needs are at the heart of key discussions. He attended the 
Transport for South East meeting last month, noting that it is on track to receive the 
crucial statutory body status. 

He drew Members attention to the ongoing work to respond to Gatwick Airport’s 
expansion aspirations. He cited a recent report in the Member Information Services 
Bulletin where the Council has committed resources to ensure a detailed and 
technical case is put forward in response to a scoping request. He noted that the 
Planning Inspectorate has agreed with almost all the points that the Council and 
other Local Authorities have made to require Gatwick to look more closely at their 
proposals to mitigate the impact of the expansion. In response to Member’s 
questions he confirmed that there will be further Member briefings on this subject. He 
stated that it will be a long process, and at this early stage it would not be appropriate 
to set up a Member working group. Key will be careful consideration of the 
representations which the Council will need to make on GALs expansion proposals, 
and it is vital that Leaders from relevant Local Authorities work together. 

The Leader thanked Members who attended a recent training session on 
Understanding Local Government Finance. This is particularly important as the 
Council approaches its service and financial planning work in the new financial year. 

The Leader welcomed the success of the Haywards Heath Sixth Form College Open 
Day to showcase the impressive facilities and curriculum on offer. He thanked 
Officers of the Council and the Right Honourable Sir Nicholas Soames who worked 
tirelessly to ensure the decision to reopen the college was made. Members should be 
proud that residents now have post 16 options available locally. 

He concluded by noting that two long serving members of Parliament had announced 
that they would not be standing in the forthcoming general election. He thanked the 
Right Honourable Sir Nicholas Soames for his 22 years’ service to Mid Sussex and 
his integral role in supporting a number of strategic projects for the Council and his 
excellent advocacy within Government. He also thanked the Right Honourable Nick 
Herbert for his great tenacity in serving two wards within the District for the past 14 
years.  

10. REPORT OF CABINET MEMBERS, INCLUDING QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.1

Report of the Deputy Leader 

The Deputy Leader reiterated the thanks to Members who attended the training 
session on Understanding Local Government Finance. She drew Members attention 
to two items in the recent Member Information Service Bulletin. The first related to 
the purchase of 2 flats at the Orchards Shopping Centre which is part of the Council’s 
aspirations to ensure the centre is viable and successful. The second item relates to 
the Council’s decision not to participate in the new Business Rates Pool.  This was 
simply because mathematically it was not in the interests of the Pool for all 

Council - 18 December 2019 7



authorities in West Sussex to participate.  The Council will continue to benefit from 
the effects of the Pooling arrangements. 

A Member raised a question over the savings on Business Rates that NewRiver can 
benefit from for shop units in the first three months of occupation and urged that 
these savings be directed to charitable local causes in Burgess Hill.  The Deputy 
Leader noted that the rate relief is mandatory and not something that the Council has 
control over.  She suggested that the Town Council should take up the discussion 
with NewRiver. 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Economic Growth 

The Cabinet Member gave an update on his attendance at key meetings. 

He confirmed that the Council is keen to enable local businesses to access local 
government procurement contracts. To support this, the Economic Development 
team are reworking the 2010 "How to do Business Guide" with the aim of relaunching 
in January 2020. 

He concluded by noting the success of the Basepoint Centre in Haywards Heath, 
which has provided a flexible working space for businesses.   As the local economy 
features a large  number of the small businesses that favour this type of facility, and 
a huge number of residents that commute out to work that may increasingly look to 
use flexible working space locally several days a week, this  is a key sector to 
encourage.  

Report of the Cabinet Member for Customer Services 

The Cabinet Member praised the Revenues and Benefits team for being shortlisted 
as finalists in three categories of the IRRV awards.  

She provided an update on the recent consultation on the banded income Council 
Tax Support Scheme which has recently concluded. A number of meetings have 
been held by the Business Unit Leader with key stakeholders and affected residents. 
An update will be presented to the Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and 
Performance on 20 November and Council in December with the aim of 
implementing it by April 2020. If Council approves the new scheme, it will enable the 
use of the DWP’s information in assessing residents claims for council tax support. 
She also noted that further training on Revenues and Benefits will be provided to 
Members in January 2020. 

The Cabinet Member reiterated the success of the Mid Sussex Applauds Awards and 
thanked Officers for making it a success. She also confirmed that Mid Sussex 
Matters will be available to residents on 18 November, work is under way to improve 
the Council’s website.  

In conclusion, she noted that November is safeguarding month.  The Cabinet 
Member agreed to provide a written response confirming whether Mid Sussex District 
Council’s recruitment forms ask applicants if they have served in the Armed Forces, 
in line with the Council’s commitment to the Armed Forces Covenant. 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery 

The Cabinet Member confirmed that public consultation is underway on the 
improvements to playgrounds at John Pears in Ashurst Wood, Bolney and 

Council - 18 December 2019 8



Twineham. Consultation will also be undertaken through the master planning 
exercises for Victoria Park, St John’s Park, Mount Noddy and Finches Field as part of 
a £2.3m investment in local parks over the next 2 years. He confirmed that the 
Playing Pitch and Open Space Study considers on a Ward by Ward basis where 
provision is required going forward. He confirmed that Burgess Hill Town Council will 
be consulted on any proposed improvements to St John’s Park. 

The Cabinet Member also attended a recent meeting with Places Leisure. The 
centres continue to be well used and feedback is positive with the main focus being 
on capacity of certain popular classes. Parking at The Dolphin remains a challenge 
and ways to improve this are being considered. A downturn in income from village 
halls was discussed, but the Cabinet Member noted that regarding the Leisure 
Centres, Places Leisure are aware of the market place and keen to invest further to 
ensure the venues remain attractive to residents. 

He also announced that the Council will be consulting on Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) on behalf of WSCC. These will cover East Grinstead 
and Haywards Heath, with Burgess Hill routes already being identified and 
progressed through the Place and Connectivity Project. Expert travel consultants will 
be engaged and the Council will liaise with local stakeholders and relevant 
organisations with the aim to develop studies by Spring 2020. He noted that in rural 
areas, close liaison with Parish Councils would be required and he would ask 
Officers to explore what scope there is within the LCWIPs methodology to do this. 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Community 

The Cabinet Member reiterated the success of the Mid Sussex Applauds Awards in 
its new format, incorporating both the Youth Awards and Chairman Awards. He noted 
it was a celebration of a fantastic range of projects, stories and events from across 
the District with a heartening mix of 29 nominees across an age range of almost 75 
years.  

He drew Members attention to the 8 May 2020 which signifies 75 years since the 
guns fell silent at the end of the Second World War in Europe. To commemorate this 
anniversary, the Cabinet Grants Panel has agreed a proposal to establish a small 
grant fund (£7,500) for VEDay75 celebrations around the early May Public Holiday. 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 

The Cabinet Member confirmed that as of 1 November 2019, the cumulative number 
of affordable houses delivered was 122 which is a promising start for half way 
through the Council year.  In response to a question on the number of market houses 
being completed, he confirmed that the 5 year housing land supply was continually 
monitored but specific data on completions was collected annually so there are no 
mid-year figures available at this time. He also confirmed that the Council has 
submitted and is awaiting the outcome of a bid to the Ministry of Housing Community 
and Local Government (MHCLG) for cold weather funding to assist rough sleepers. 
The Homeless Adviser from MHCLG will visit the Housing Needs team this week to 
discuss the bid. 

He noted that in Planning Development Management, performance continues to 
exceed targets. The percentage of major schemes determined within 13 weeks, 

Council - 18 December 2019 9



minor schemes and other applications determined within 8 weeks has been at 100% 
for the past 3 months. 

The topic of meeting the target of 30% affordable housing in new developments was 
discussed and the Cabinet Member confirmed that the Council  ensures that every 
applicable site provides 30% affordable housing. He also noted that smaller 
developments are not required to provide affordable housing and on limited 
occasions where affordable housing is not appropriate on site, the Council has 
accepted commuted sums to provide social housing in a more suitable location. 

11. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE
10.2

The following question was received from Councillor Eves:

The last time a public EV charger worked in Burgess Hill was 19th September 2018,
so Cyprus Rd car park charger has been broken for over a year now. Haywards
Heath chargers have been out of service in the last week. EV drivers can see on their
app that Burgess Hill is a ‘black hole’ with no working charger, so they don’t even go
there. Do you have any idea of when the public can expect our chargers to be
repaired?

The following response was provided by Councillor John Belsey, Cabinet Member for
Environment and Service Delivery:

As you know from our correspondence, the fault at Cyprus Road cannot be rectified
by this Council. The work can only be undertaken by UK Power Networks and, as
you also know, we are awaiting a date from them when the work will be undertaken.
The fault with the Haywards Heath chargers has also been reported to the charge
point supplier.

The Cabinet Member went on to say that it is also worth remembering that the
provision of chargers is not core business for the Council and there are significant
demands on our limited resources. However the Council is, trying to use its influence
to stimulate the market and other providers and it is encouraging that we are being
successful in that regard, as the new 50-kilowatt charges in Handcross suggests.

This month he noted that the Council will also submit an application to the Office for
Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV) to install an additional 26 new EVCPs chargers
across the District.

The Cabinet Member agreed to provide a written response to Councillor Eves’ follow
up question on whether the Council will be applying for money that the Government
has recently agreed to offer local authorities in relation to this subject.

The meeting finished at 8.00 pm 

Chairman 

Council - 18 December 2019 10



 

 

  REVIEW OF MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES FOR 2020/2021 
 
REPORT OF: Head of Regulatory Services, Solicitor to the Council and 

Monitoring Officer 
Contact Officer: Lucinda Joyce, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Email: lucinda.joyce@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477225 
Wards Affected: All 
Key Decision 
Report to: 

N/A 
Council - 18 December 2019 
 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To present the attached report of the Independent Remuneration Panel on 

the review of Members’ Allowances to be paid to Members of Mid Sussex 
District Council in 2020/21. 

 
 

Recommendations  
 
2. Council is recommended to: 
 

(i) thank the Panel for their work; 
(ii) consider the recommendations of the Panel, summarised below, 

and 
(iii) agree a scheme of allowances for the financial year 2020/21. 
 
 

Summary of Recommendations 
 
3. The Panel’s recommendations for Basic and Special Responsibility 

Allowances are summarised in the table below (rounded to the nearest whole 
pound). 

 

Role Current Allowance (£): 
Recommended Allowance 

(£): 

Basic Allowance 5,000 5,100 

Leader’s Allowance 20,596 No change 

Deputy Leader’s Allowance 11,000 No change 

Cabinet Member 8,500 No change 

Chairman of the Council 6,572 6,750 

Vice-Chairman of Council 2,251 2,250 

2x Planning Committee 
Chairman 

15,000 
(5,000 x 3) 

12,750 
(6,375 x2) 

2x Planning Committee Vice-
Chairman 

3,750 
(1,250 x 3) 

3,188 
(1,594 x 2) 

25% of Planning Chairman’s 
allowance 

Licensing Committee 
Chairman 

1,000 1,020 

Standards Committee 
Chairman 

1,000 1,020 

Group Leader  250 per group member No change 

3x Scrutiny Committee 12,000 12,240 

Council - 18 December 2019 11

Agenda Item 7

mailto:lucinda.joyce@midsussex.gov.uk


 

 

Chairman (4,000 x 3) (4,080 x 3) 

3x Scrutiny Committee Vice - 
Chairman 

3,000 
(1,000 x 3) 

3,060 
(1,020 x 3) 

25% of Scrutiny Chairman’s 
allowance 

Audit Committee Chairman 2,000 3,060 

2x Independent Persons for 
Standards Matters 

1,500 
(750 x 2) 

No Change 

 
The Panel recommends that Members should only be entitled to claim one 
Special Responsibility Allowance, with the exception of allowances paid to 
Group Leaders. 
 

4. Deputy Leader’s Allowance 
 

 Having met with the Leader and Deputy Leader, the Panel recommends that 
 the current allowances remain the same. 

 
5. Cabinet Member’s Allowance 

 
 The Panel noted that within District Councils in West Sussex the allowance 
 paid to Cabinet Members remains at the upper end of the range, however 
 having met with the Leader and Deputy Leader, the Panel recommends that 
 the current allowances remain the same. 

 
 

6. Chairs of Licensing Committee and Standards Committee 
 
The Panel noted that these allowances were increased substantially last 
year and now reflect 20% of the basic allowance which remains an 
appropriate level. 
 

7. Chairs and Vice Chairs of Planning Committees 
 

The Panel noted that the Council now has two Planning Committees rather 
than three. In recognising the changes in workload, the Panel 
recommends increasing the SRA paid to Chairman of planning 
Committees from 100% of the basic allowance to 125%.   

 
8. Chairman of the Council 
 
 Noting that the allowance had not changed over the past 4 years, the Panel 
 recommends increasing the SRA paid to Chairman of the Council  to £6,750, 
 based on evidence provided on the extent of the workload. 
 
9. Chair of the Audit Committee 
 
 The Panel considered the workloads of Scrutiny Committees and the Audit 
 Committee and agreed that the SRA paid to the Chair of the Audit Committee 
 should be set at 60% of the Basic Allowance, an increase from 40%.  
 
10. Travelling and Subsistence Allowance 
 

The Panel recommends no change for the mileage allowances as these are in 
line with HMRC.   

Council - 18 December 2019 12



 

 

 

Detail Recommended Rate 

Vehicles  

Car Mileage 45p per mile 

Car Passenger Mileage Rate 
3p per mile for 1 passenger 
5p per mile for 2 or more passengers 

Cycling Allowance 20p per mile 

Subsistence  

Breakfast £7.00 

Lunch £10.00 

Tea £4.00 

Evening Meal £13.00 

Overnight Out of Pocket Expenses Per night £6.00 

Overnight Out of Pocket Expenses Per week £24.00 

 
11. Childcare and Dependent Carer’s Allowances 

 
11.1  Childcare Allowance 

 
The Panel recommend that this allowance should remain linked to the real 
living wage rate. Payment will be on receipt-based actual costs up to a 
maximum rate of £9 per hour for one child, or a maximum of £18 per hour for 
two or more children. 

 
11.2 Dependent Carer’s Allowance 

 
The Panel agreed that the existing payment of receipt-based actual costs, up 
to a maximum rate of £18 per hour remains appropriate.   

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
12. Background  
 

The Local Government Act 2000 requires local authorities to set their 
schemes of allowance on an annual basis after taking into account the 
recommendations of an independent panel. 

 
The Mid Sussex Independent Remuneration Panel undertook its review of 
Members’ allowances between July and November 2019 and its report is 
appended below. 

 
13. Financial Implications 
 

The net cost of the proposed allowances is £4,166 which includes the 
small saving made by the reduction in Planning Committees. This 
would be an increase of 1.12% to the annual budget compared to the 
current year. 
 

14. Appendices 
 

 Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel on Members' Allowances for 
2020/21.

Council - 18 December 2019 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Mid Sussex 

Report of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel on the review of Members’ 
Allowances 2020 / 21 

Mr Neil Gershon (Chair) 

Ms Jane Henry 

Ms Jane Rothwell 

18th December 2019 

Council - 18 December 2019 15



Blank page 

Council - 18 December 2019 16



Contents 

Report of the Panel 

- Chairman’s Foreword………………………………………………………………………………… 

- Introduction……………………………………………………………………………………….

- Terms of Reference…………………………………………………………………………..… 

- Work of the Panel………………………………………………………………………………. 

Consideration and Recommendations 

- Basic Allowance……………………………………………………………….………………... 

- Special Responsibility Allowances…………………………………………..………………... 

- Travelling and Subsistence Allowances…………………..……………..……………….….. 

- Childcare and Dependent Carer’s Allowance…………………………………………..…… 

- Frequency of Panel Review…………………………………………………………………… 

- ICT Allowance ……………………………………………………………….…………………. 

- Summary of Recommendations……………………………………………………………... 

- Acknowledgements…………………………………………………………………………....

Appendices 

- A: Panel Membership………..……………………………………………………………....... 

- B: Members and Officers Interviewed.…..……..…………………………………………… 

- C: Comparable Allowances of District and Borough Councils in the South East
Region………………………………….…………………………………………………... 

- D: MSDC Committee Structure….………………………………………………………....... 

Council - 18 December 2019 17



CHAIRMAN’S FOREWORD 

I am pleased to present the report and recommendations of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel for Mid Sussex District Council, relating to the financial year 2020/21. 

Two new members were appointed to the Panel and with one member retiring the Panel was 
once again at full strength having been one short in the previous year. 

The Panel’s discussions were informed by data covering allowances paid in similar councils and 
by other information provided by officers. The Panel met with the Leader, Deputy Leader, two of 
the Group Leaders and two councillors both of whom were in receipt of Special Responsibility 
Allowances (SRAs). Twelve councillors responded to the Panel’s invitation to submit written 
evidence or observations. 

In the four years to 2019 the Council implemented the recommendations of the Panel to follow a 
staged plan designed to raise the Basic Allowance to an acceptable level. The Panel had hoped 
to build on that approach for a further period. However, in discussion it became clear that the 
election of a significant number of new councillors and the changes in the distribution of SRAs 
meant there would be insufficient evidence to undertake a review in the depth required for a 
longer term plan to be formulated. 

Accordingly the Panel concluded that the Basic Allowance should be raised in line with the 
change in the Consumer Prices Index for September by 1.7% rounded up for simplicity. The 
effect of this recommendation would be to raise the Basic Allowance to £5,100. 

The Panel learned of the move from three Planning Committees to two and the consequent 
changes in workload. It agreed this should be recognised and recommends increasing the SRA 
paid to Chairs of Planning Committees from 100% of the Basic Allowance to 125% leaving 
the SRA for Vice Chairs at 25% of the Chair Allowance. 

The Panel considered the relative workloads of Scrutiny Committees and the Audit Committee 
and agreed that the SRA paid to the Chair of the Audit Committee should be set at 60% of the 
Basic Allowance, an increase from 40%. 

The Panel considered all other Special Responsibility Allowances. It noted that the SRA paid to 
the Chair of Council had remained unchanged for many years and in the light of evidence 
provided as to the extent of the workload agreed to recommend a rise to £6,750 leaving the 
SRA paid to the Vice-Chair at 33% of the Chair’s Allowance.  

All other SRAs including the Group Leader’s allowance should, in the Panel’s view, remain 
unchanged as should all other established linkages. 

The Panel notes that the Allowances for the Leader, Deputy Leader, Cabinet Members and the 
Chair of Council have yet to be linked to the Base Allowance. It hopes that sufficient information 
will become available for next year’s review to allow further recommendations on linkages to be 
made. 

The net cost of the changes proposed in the report is £4,166 which includes the small saving 
made by the reduction in Planning Committees. This would be an increase of 1.12% to the 
annual budget compared to the current year. 

Neil Gershon 

December 

2019 

Council - 18 December 2019 18



INTRODUCTION 

This Independent Remuneration Panel has been appointed by Mid Sussex District Council to 

consider and make recommendations for the 2020/21 financial year. The Panel comprises Neil 
Gershon (this year’s Chair), Jane Henry and Jane Rothwell. Their terms of appointment and a 
short biography are set out at Appendix A. 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The Panel is required to make recommendations to Mid Sussex District Council on their schemes 

of allowances. The terms of reference, in so far as they relate to Mid Sussex District Council, are 
to make their recommendations: 

a) On the amount of Basic Allowance which should be payable to its Elected Members;

b) About the roles and responsibilities for which a Special Responsibility Allowance should be
paid and the amounts thereof;

c) About the duties for which travelling and subsistence allowances should be paid and the

amounts thereof;

d) As to whether co-optees to committees should receive allowances and the amounts thereof;

e) As to whether the Council’s scheme should include an allowance in respect of arranging for
the care of children and dependents and if so, the amount thereof.

WORK OF THE PANEL 

The Panel wrote to all Members of the District Council seeking views on any topic relating to 
allowances and expenses and received twelve replies. The Panel met with two Members and 
with the Leader, Deputy Leader, two Group Leaders and appropriate Officers. 

The written and oral evidence received by the Panel indicated that the level of the Base 
Allowance was considered reasonable. 

The comparative data showing equivalent allowances paid by other councils proved to be another 
key source of information for the Panel and can be found at Appendix C to this report. 

The Panel met on three occasions between July and November 2019, and also communicated 
over this period by email. These meetings planned the review evaluated the evidence received 
and debated its findings, before formulating both draft and final reports containing its 
recommendations. 

As with the previous review, one of the Panel’s key considerations was affordability in the current 
economic climate. Whilst we recognise that the work and demands upon Councillors continues to 

expand, this has to be balanced against the demand upon the public purse. 
We therefore make our recommendations accordingly. 

Council - 18 December 2019 19



Consideration and Recommendations 

1. Basic Allowance

The Panel once again examined the record of Basic Allowance rates since the system was 
introduced in July 2001: 

Year Recommended 
Rate 

Adopted 
Rate (£): 

Percentage increase 
on previous year 

Percentage rate of inflation 
in same year 

2001/2 
Scheme introduced 

31.7.2001 
4000 0 1.26 

2002/3 4000 4000 0 1.36 

2003/4 4140 4140 +3.5 1.34 

2004/5 4245 4245 0 2.05 

2005/6 4370 4370 +5.6 2.33 

2006/7 4500
1

4500 +2.97 2.32 

2007/8 4500 plus increase in 

line with Local Government 

Pay Settlement for 2007/8 

4611 +2.5 3.61 

2008/9 4611 plus increase in 

line with Local Government 

Pay Settlement for 2008/9 

4611 0 2.17 

2009/10 4611 plus increase in 

line with Local Government 

Pay Settlement for 2009/10 

4738 +2.75 3.29 

2010/11 4738 4738 0 4.48 

2011/12 4501 4501 -5.0 2.83 

2012/13 4501 plus increase in 

line with Local Government 

Pay Settlement for 2012/13 

4501 0 2.56 

2013/14 4501 4501 0 1.69 

2014/15 4501 plus increase in 

line with Local Government 

Pay Settlement for 2014/15 

4501 0 Source: Inflation.eu Historic average inflation rate 

based upon Consumer Price Index (CPI). 

2015/16 4501 4501 0 0 

2016/17 4620 4620 2.5 1.0 

2017/18 4736 4736 2.5 3.0 

2018/19 4878 4878 3 3.0 

2019/20 5000 5000 2.5 2.2 

Over the previous four years the Panel’s recommendations to bring the Basic Allowance up to 
£5,000 have been accepted by the Council. We received no evidence to suggest that the level is 
inadequate but caution against complacency as the level of the Allowance should not, in the 
Panel’s view, be allowed to fall back from the current position. Accordingly the Panel felt that the 
correct approach would be to raise the Basic Allowance by the rate of inflation (CPI) slightly 
rounded for simplicity from £5,000 to £5,100 

The Panel felt that subject to any major unforeseen changes the linking rises in the Basic 
Allowance in general terms to the September CPI (used by Government for Public Sector 
pensions and benefits) was an appropriate way forward. 

Council - 18 December 2019 20

http://www.inflation.eu/inflation-rates/great-britain/historic-inflation/cpi-inflation-great-britain.aspx


2. Special Responsibility Allowances

2.1. Leader, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Members

The Panel would have wished to begin the process of linking these allowances to a multiple of the 
Basic Allowance. However, as a number of recipients were newly in post it was not possible to 
establish sufficient justification for so doing. The Panel noted that all these SRAs were at the top 
end of comparable SRAs in other WSCC District Councils and in addition discussions with the 
Leader and Deputy Leader suggested that the current allowances paid to them and to Cabinet 
Members did not require any adjustment. Accordingly the Panel recommends no change to 
these Allowances. 

2.2. Chairs and Vice Chairs of Planning Committees 

The Panel learned that the Council now had only two Planning Committees rather than three as 
was previously the case. It also learned that as a consequence the workloads associated with 
each Committee had changed partly due to the adoption of the District Plan and partly as the total 
number of applications appeared to be reducing. Nevertheless the frequency of meetings had 
increased as the workload of three committees was absorbed into two and the Panel agreed this 
should be recognised by an increase in the multiple of the basic allowance applied to the SRA for 
Chairs of Planning Committees from 100% to 125%. 
The Panel agreed to recommend no change to the proportionate level of the Vice Chairs SRA 
which should remain at 25% of the Chair Allowance. 

2.3  Chairs and Vice Chairs of Scrutiny Committees 

The Panel noted that the allowance paid to Chairs of Scrutiny Committees was linked to 80% of 
the basic allowance paid to all members. It saw no reason to depart from this and recommends no 
change to the multiple or to the allowance paid to the Vice Chair which should remain as 25% of 
the Chair allowance, both allowances to increase in line with the base allowance. 

2.4 Chairs of Licensing Committee and Standards Committee 

The Panel recalled that these Allowances had been increased substantially in the previous year 
and were now 20% of the basic allowance. The Panel agreed that this was an appropriate level 
and that the allowance should increase accordingly. 

2.5 Chair of Audit Committee 

Evidence presented to the Panel and the level of allowance paid for this role in other Districts 
suggested that the allowance was low and did not adequately represent the importance of the 
role. Whilst the workload was not as heavy as that of Scrutiny Committees introducing a multiple 
of 60% of the basic allowance to establish the level of the allowance would accord with the 
evidence before the Panel. Accordingly the Panel recommends an increase in this SRA to a 
multiple of 60% of the basic allowance 

2.6 Chair and Vice Chair of Council 

The Panel noted that this allowance had not changed for at least four years and possibly longer. It 
had details of the work involved in the role of Chair and felt that in recognition a modest rise from 
£6,572 to £6,750 would be appropriate. The linkage of the allowance for the Vice-Chair should 
remain at 33% of the Chair’s allowance. 

2.7  Other Special Responsibility Allowances 

The Panel received no representations as to the level of other allowances including that paid to 
Group Leaders and accordingly makes no recommendations for changes. 

Council - 18 December 2019 21



2.8 Future Work 

The Panel felt able to confirm linkages for certain allowances and establish some others all of 
which are reflected in the recommendations. It hopes to undertake work towards establishing the 
correct multiples for allowances paid to Cabinet Members including the Leader and Deputy 
Leader in future years. 

2.9 Conclusions 

In the light of the evidence presented to the Panel and the representations received the Panel 
recommends the following: 

 Basic Allowance to rise to £5,100;

 Planning Committee Chairs to rise to 125% of the Basic Allowance as above;

 Planning Committee Vice-Chairs to remain at 25% of the Chair Allowance;

 Scrutiny Committee Chairs to remain at 80% of the Basic Allowance;

 Scrutiny Committee Vice Chairs to remain at 25% of the Chair rate;

 Licensing Committee Chair to be linked to 20% of the Basic Allowance;

 Standards Committee Chair to be linked to 20% of the Basic Allowance;

 Audit Committee Chair to be linked to 60% of the Basic Allowance;

 Allowance for the Chair of Council to rise to £6,750.

Council - 18 December 2019 22



3. Travelling and Subsistence Allowance

No representations were received on the current levels of Travel and Subsistence allowances. 
We recommend that these allowances continue to be linked to those deemed acceptable by 
HMRC and note that HMRC increased the recommended rate for subsistence in July 2017. 

Detail Recommended Rate 

Vehicles 

Car Mileage 45p per mile 

Car Passenger Mileage Rate 
3p per mile for 1 passenger 
5p per mile for 2 or more passengers 

Cycling Allowance 20p per mile 

Subsistence 

Breakfast £7.00 

Lunch £10.00 

Tea £4.00 

Evening Meal £13.00 

Overnight Out of Pocket Expenses Per night £6.00 

Overnight Out of Pocket Expenses Per week £24.00 

4. Childcare and Dependent Carer’s Allowances

4.1. Childcare Allowance

The Panel agreed that this allowance should remain linked to the national living wage rate1. 

Payment will be on receipt-based actual costs up to a maximum rate of £9 per hour for one 
child, or a maximum of £18 per hour for two or more children. 

4.2. Dependent Carer’s Allowance 

The Panel agreed that the existing payment of receipt-based actual costs, up to a maximum rate 
of £18 per hour was appropriate. 

4.3  Cycling Allowance 

Whilst the Panel makes no recommendation for change it wishes to invite the Council to 
consider whether a change in the allowance to make cycling more attractive should be 
considered within the context of the Council’s policies on environmental matters. 

5. Frequency of Panel Review

This review is the first conducted since the recent elections. The Panel expects to have more 
information on matters such as workloads to inform its deliberations in future years and 
specifically to enable proposals to link certain SRAs to the basic allowance. 

1 www.livingwage.org.uk 

Council - 18 December 2019 23

http://www.livingwage.org.uk/


6. Summary of Recommendations

The Panel’s recommendations for Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances 
are summarised in the table below (rounded to the nearest whole pound). 

Role Current Allowance (£): Recommended Allowance (£): 

Basic Allowance 5,000 5,100 

Leader’s Allowance 20,596 No change 

Deputy Leader’s 
Allowance 

     11,000 No change 

Cabinet Member 8,500 No change 

Chairman of the Council 6,572 6,750 

Vice-Chairman of Council 2,251 2,250 

2 x Planning Committee 
Chairman 

15,000 
(5,000 x3) 

12,750 
(6,375 x 2) 

3 x Planning Vice- 
Chairman 

3,750 
(1,250 x 3) 

3,188 
(1,594 x 2) 

 25% of Planning Chairman’s allowance 

Licensing Committee 
Chairman 

1,000 1,020 

Standards Committee 
Chairman 

1,000 1,020 

Group Leader 250 per group member No change 

3 x Scrutiny Committee 
Chairman 

12,000 
(4,000 x 3) 

12,240 
(4,080 x 3) 

3 x Scrutiny Vice- 
Chairman 

3,000 
(1,000 x 3) 

3,060 
(1,020 x 3) 

 25% of  Scrutiny Chairman’s allowance 

Audit Committee 
Chairman 

2,000 3,060 

2 x Independent Persons 
for Standard Matters 

1,500 
(2 x 750) 

No Change 

The net cost of the changes proposed in the report is £4,166 which includes the small saving 
made by the reduction in Planning Committees. This would be an increase of 1.12% to the 
annual budget compared to the current year. 

The Panel recommends that Members should continue to only be entitled to claim one Special 
Responsibility Allowance, with the exception of allowance paid to the Group Leaders. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Panel would like to extend its thanks to those who took the time to reply to our request for 
comments and to those who were able to meet with us. We would also like to offer our collective 
thanks to the Member Services Team, for their research and administrative support of our work 
this year. 

Neil Gershon  
Jane Henry 

 Jane Rothwell 

Council - 18 December 2019 24



APPENDIX A 

Panel Membership 

Members of the Independent Panel for the Review of Members’ Allowances are 
appointed for a four-year term: 

Name Term ends 

Neil Gershon 31 July 2023 

Jane Henry 31 July 2023 

Jane Rothwell 31 July 2023 

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION 

Neil Gershon 

Neil Gershon spent his working life in the University sector during which time he was responsible 
amongst many other matters for HR and was involved in remuneration committees for non- 
academic staff. He retired from the post of Registrar at the University of Sussex in 2004. He is 
currently the Chairman of Furnihelp Mid Sussex, a local furniture recycling charity. He lives in 
Haywards Heath. 

Jane Henry 

Jane qualified in both Law and Social Work before working as a social worker in West London. 
Jane has lived the majority of her life in Sussex and is now taking a break from paid employment to 
raise 3 young children. She volunteers with the National Childbirth Trust to support families in the 
Mid-Sussex area, through running nearly new sales and a local toddler group. 

Jane Rothwell 

Jane had a career in HR working in the Financial Services Sector initially working for NatWest Bank 
before moving to a HR Consultancy company based in the City, specialising in Recruitment, 
Training & Development & Outplacement. She managed teams of 80 plus people, most were self- 
employed consultants, and was involved in all operational matters including annual pay reviews for 
her team. She happily took early retirement in 2015 and has since retrained to become a Magistrate 
working in West Sussex courts. Jane has lived in West Hoathly for the last 4 years. 

Council - 18 December 2019 25



APPENDIX B 

Members and Officers Interviewed 

The Panel wishes to acknowledge and thank those who were able to spare the time 
to attend face-to-face discussions: 

Leader of the Council  

Deputy Leader of the Council  

Group Leader of the Liberal Democrats 

Group Leader of the Independent Councillors 

Solicitor to the Council 

  Cllrs Gary Marsh and Philip Coote 

Council - 18 December 2019 26



APPENDIX C - Comparable Allowances of District and Borough Councils 

in the South East Region.

(West Sussex District and Borough Councils Highlighted in Green)

Council name

Type of 

council

Basic 

Allowance 

for 

2019/2020 Leader

Deputy 

Leader

Cabinet 

Member / 

Portfolio 

Holder

Cabinet 

Member / 

Non Portfolio 

Holder

Chair Audit 

Committee

Licensing 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Licensing 

Committee

Members of 

Licensing 

Committee

Planning 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Planning 

Committee

Members of 

Planning 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Co-optee

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Deputy 

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Opposition 

Group Leader

Deputy 

Opposition 

Leader Group Leader

Committee 

Chair

Independent 

Person 

Allowance

Do you 

operate the 

'1 SRA per 

councillor' 

rule?

Adur District 

Council District £4,511.04 £13,533.12 £6,766.56 £5,638.80 £0.00 £2,255.52 £3,383.28 £1,127.76 £0.00 £4,511.04 £1,127.76 £0.00 £3,383.28 £1,127.76 £0.00 £2,255.52 £1,127.76 £2,255.52 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 No

Arun District 

Council District £5,481.00 £14,196.00 £10,400.00 £8,320.00 £0.00 £3,750.00 £4,000.00 £1,200.00 £250.00 £6,000.00 £1,980.00 £750.00 £4,870.00 £1,607.00 £60.00 £8,320.00 £2,745.00 £3,917.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,000.00 £1,440.00 No

Ashford 

Borough 

Council District £4,768.24 £15,597.39 £10,398.25 £7,798.70 £0.00 £5,199.13 £1,559.74 £0.00 £0.00 £6,238.96 £2,079.65 £0.00 £6,238.96 £2,079.65 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £239.72 £0.00 £239.72 £0.00 £1,559.74 No

Aylesbury 

Vale District 

Council District £5,700.00 £17,100.00 £12,825.00 £11,400.00 £0.00 £4,275.00 £2,850.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,700.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,275.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,700.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £200.00 Yes

Basingstoke 

and Deane 

Borough 

Council District £7,014.00 £23,367.00 £15,570.00 £11,688.00 £0.00 £5,838.00 £5,838.00 £588.00 £0.00 £7,014.00 £696.00 £0.00 £5,838.00 £588.00 £465.00 £4,662.00 £1,347.00 £7,014.00 £0.00 £3,501.00 £5,838.00 £1,725.00 Yes

Bracknell 

Forest 

Council Unitary £8,687.00 £28,954.00 £17,372.00 £15,926.00 £0.00 £2,201.00 £5,626.00 £553.00 £0.00 £7,239.00 £723.00 £0.00 £5,791.00 £0.00 £297.00 £12,703.00 £4,234.00 £9,651.00 £965.00 £0.00 £2,201.00 £400.00 Yes

Brighton & 

Hove City 

Council Unitary £13,002.00 £32,505.00 £19,503.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,876.00 £11,377.00 £975.00 £0.00 £11,377.00 £975.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,752.00 £1,950.00 £11,377.00 £6,501.00 £6,501.00 £9,752.00 £500.00 Yes

Buckinghams

hire County 

Council County £11,998.00 £44,539.00 £29,727.00 £22,625.00 £0.00 £5,660.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,660.00 £0.00 £0.00 £11,319.00 £0.00 £0.00 £14,144.00 £3,540.00 £3,562.00 £0.00 £12,552.00 £5,660.00 £0.00 Yes

Canterbury 

City Council District £5,584.62 £19,416.89 £5,851.70 £0.00 £0.00 £531.95 £5,851.70 £0.00 £0.00 £5,851.70 £531.97 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,851.70 £4,255.85 £142.57 £95.04 £142.57 £5,851.70 £495.84 Yes

Cherwell 

District 

Council District £4,392.00 £7,476.00 £2,580.00 £6,528.00 £0.00 £3,636.00 £1,044.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,344.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,636.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,012.00 £0.00 £0.00 £261.00 £744.00 No

Chichester 

District 

Council District £4,725.00 £14,500.00 £7,700.00 £7,000.00 £0.00 £4,800.00 £4,800.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,800.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,000.00 £0.00 £4,500.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Chiltern 

District 

Council District £4,896.00 £14,198.00 £7,099.00 £6,365.00 £0.00 £1,714.00 £1,714.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,141.00 £1,469.00 £734.00 £3,427.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,141.00 £2,056.00 £979.00 £0.00 £979.00 £98.00 £200.00 No

Crawley 

Borough 

Council District £6,190.00 £14,281.00 £0.00 £7,729.00 £0.00 £2,578.00 £5,307.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,440.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,916.00 £0.00 £0.00 £11,239.00 £1,752.00 £7,143.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £750.00 Yes

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

27



APPENDIX C - Comparable Allowances of District and Borough Councils 

in the South East Region.

(West Sussex District and Borough Councils Highlighted in Green)

Council name

Type of 

council

Basic 

Allowance 

for 

2019/2020 Leader

Deputy 

Leader

Cabinet 

Member / 

Portfolio 

Holder

Cabinet 

Member / 

Non Portfolio 

Holder

Chair Audit 

Committee

Licensing 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Licensing 

Committee

Members of 

Licensing 

Committee

Planning 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Planning 

Committee

Members of 

Planning 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Co-optee

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Deputy 

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Opposition 

Group Leader

Deputy 

Opposition 

Leader Group Leader

Committee 

Chair

Independent 

Person 

Allowance

Do you 

operate the 

'1 SRA per 

councillor' 

rule?

East 

Hampshire 

District 

Council District £5,200.00 £18,000.00 £10,000.00 £6,000.00 6,000 £2,000.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 £250.00 £6,000.00 £3,000.00 £250.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,000.00 £0.00 £3,000.00 £0.00 £3,000.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 Yes

East Sussex 

County 

Council County £12,797.00 £35,832.00 £18,289.00 £15,676.00 £0.00 £6,531.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,531.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,531.00 £0.00 £0.00 £13,061.00 £5,230.00 £13,061.00 £3,394.00 £5,230.00 £6,531.00 £35.00 Yes

Eastbourne 

Borough 

Council District £2,808.00 £4,212.00 £2,808.00 £2,808.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,404.00 £0.00 £62.00 £2,106.00 £0.00 £1,404.00 £1,404.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,808.00 £1,404.00 £2,106.00 £1,404.00 £0.00 £93.00 £1,000.00 No

Elmbridge 

Borough 

Council District £5,183.00 £12,956.00 £0.00 £6,479.00 £0.00 £3,887.00 £2,591.00 £648.00 £0.00 £5,830.00 £1,458.00 £0.00 £6,479.00 £3,240.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,591.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Fareham 

Borough 

Council District £7,083.60 £21,250.00 £11,806.00 £11,806.00 £0.00 £4,427.25 £7,378.75 £885.45 £0.00 £10,625.40 £885.45 £0.00 £7,378.75 £885.45 £0.00 £4,722.40 £885.45 £3,541.80 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £728.28 Yes

Folkestone & 

Hythe District 

Council District £5,433.00 £23,905.00 £11,953.00 £10,866.00 £0.00 £6,248.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,248.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,248.00 £0.00 £815.00 £8,150.00 £1,630.00 £8,150.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Gravesham 

Borough 

Council District £4,822.00 £21,700.00 £9,645.00 £4,822.00 £0.00 £1,206.00 £723.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,822.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,411.00 £723.00 £0.00 £10,790.00 £3,140.00 £4,822.00 £0.00 £0.00 £482.00 £0.00 No

Guildford 

Borough 

Council District £6,864.00 £8,236.00 £1,373.00 £5,491.00 £0.00 £3,432.00 £3,432.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,491.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,491.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,491.00 £2,745.00 £5,491.00 £0.00 £68.46 £3,432.00 £0.00 No

Hampshire 

County 

Council County £12,489.00 £30,138.00 £18,082.00 £18,082.00 £0.00 £6,028.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £12,055.00 £3,020.00 £0.00 £12,055.00 £3,020.00 £703.00 £19,127.00 £19,127.00 £12,708.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £703.00 Yes

Hart District 

Council District £4,652.00 £16,284.00 £8,142.00 £7,328.00 £0.00 £2,443.00 £1,629.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,886.00 £1,627.00 £0.00 £3,257.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,071.00 £0.00 £2,443.00 £0.00 £102.00 £0.00 £1,196.00 Yes

Havant 

Borough 

Council District £5,430.00 £14,800.00 £10,018.00 £8,425.00 8,425 £6,831.00 £1,116.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,009.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,692.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £911.00 £0.00 £911.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Horsham 

District 

Council District £5,070.00 £13,790.00 £8,685.00 £7,090.00 £0.00 £2,465.00 £2,465.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,890.00 £1,305.00 £0.00 £5,165.00 £1,725.00 £0.00 £5,165.00 £1,730.00 £4,170.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,465.00 £1,305.00 No

Isle of Wight 

Council Unitary £8,011.08 £16,022.16 £10,013.85 £8,011.08 £0.00 £3,204.43 £2,403.32 £0.00 £0.00 £6,408.86 £1,602.22 £0.00 £8,011.08 £1,602.22 £0.00 £5,607.76 £1,602.22 £1,602.22 £0.00 £785.40 £4,005.54 £301.00 Yes

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

28



APPENDIX C - Comparable Allowances of District and Borough Councils 

in the South East Region.

(West Sussex District and Borough Councils Highlighted in Green)

Council name

Type of 

council

Basic 

Allowance 

for 

2019/2020 Leader

Deputy 

Leader

Cabinet 

Member / 

Portfolio 

Holder

Cabinet 

Member / 

Non Portfolio 

Holder

Chair Audit 

Committee

Licensing 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Licensing 

Committee

Members of 

Licensing 

Committee

Planning 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Planning 

Committee

Members of 

Planning 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Co-optee

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Deputy 

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Opposition 

Group Leader

Deputy 

Opposition 

Leader Group Leader

Committee 

Chair

Independent 

Person 

Allowance

Do you 

operate the 

'1 SRA per 

councillor' 

rule?

Kent County 

Council County £15,561.94 £51,175.14 £33,262.80 £33,262.80 £15,351.69 £8,953.13 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £11,263.42 £0.00 £0.00 £8,953.13 £0.00 £0.00 £16,865.96 £8,953.13 £7,675.84 £0.00 £7,675.84 £8,953.13 £500.00 No

Lewes District 

Council District £3,196.00 £14,821.00 £0.00 £5,928.00 £2,964 £4,446.00 £60.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,446.00 £741.00 £533.00 £3,557.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,224.00 £0.00 £4,446.00 £0.00 £4,446.00 £0.00 £1,000.00 Yes

Maidstone 

Borough 

Council District £5,065.00 £20,002.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,000.00 £4,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £8,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,653.00 £1,061.00 £402.63 £0.00 £402.63 £8,000.00 £750.13 Yes

Medway 

Council Unitary £10,421.00 £31,263.00 £20,842.00 £15,632.00 £0.00 £7,295.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £12,505.00 £5,211.00 £0.00 £10,421.00 £3,647.00 £0.00 £13,874.00 £6,991.00 £12,505.00 £6,253.00 £6,253.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Mid Sussex 

District 

Council District £5,000.00 £20,596.00 £11,000.00 £8,500.00 8,500 £2,000.00 £1,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,000.00 £1,250.00 £0.00 £4,000.00 £1,000.00 £0.00 £6,572.00 £2,251.00 £250.00 £0.00 £250.00 £0.00 £750.00 Yes

Milton 

Keynes 

Council Unitary £10,710.00 £31,212.00 £15,606.00 £11,444.00 £0.00 £5,722.00 £8,323.00 £0.00 £0.00 £8,323.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,682.00 £0.00 £620.00 £11,444.00 £5,722.00 £645.00 £0.00 £645.00 £0.00 £620.00 Yes

New Forest 

District 

Council District £6,425.00 £20,387.00 £0.00 £10,194.00 £0.00 £2,100.00 £2,100.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,135.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,098.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,735.00 £1,084.00 £0.00 £0.00 £56.46 Yes

Oxford City 

Council District £5,079.00 £15,237.00 £5,079.00 £7,619.00 £0.00 £1,270.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,540.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,079.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,079.00 £1,270.00 £2,540.00 £0.00 £2,540.00 £0.00 £0.00 No

Oxfordshire 

County 

Council County £10,719.00 £31,086.00 £21,438.00 £17,151.00 £0.00 £6,432.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,432.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,432.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,111.00 £0.00 £8,575.00 £2,680.00 £0.00 £6,432.00 £1,500.00 No

Portsmouth 

City Council Unitary £11,175.00 £20,115.00 £0.00 £7,823.00 £0.00 £3,911.00 £3,911.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,911.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,794.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,823.00 £1,118.00 £6,705.00 £0.00 £2,235.00 £3,911.00 £0.00 Yes

Reading 

Borough 

Council Unitary £8,220.00 £18,500.00 £11,300.00 £9,500.00 £0.00 £3,039.00 £6,076.00 £1,074.00 £0.00 £6,076.00 £1,074.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,200.00 £2,400.00 £6,076.00 £0.00 £3,039.00 £3,039.00 £1,074.00 Yes

Reigate and 

Banstead 

Borough 

Council District £5,599.00 £13,901.00 £11,353.00 £9,268.00 £0.00 £0.00 £433.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,346.00 £0.00 £790.00 £3,106.00 £0.00 £0.00 £12,954.00 £2,676.00 £144.00 £0.00 £144.00 £0.00 £564.00 No

Rother 

District 

Council District £4,475.00 £13,071.00 £3,685.00 £2,843.00 £0.00 £2,080.00 £2,080.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,843.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,843.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £445.00 £0.00 £445.00 £0.00 £361.00 Yes

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

29



APPENDIX C - Comparable Allowances of District and Borough Councils 

in the South East Region.

(West Sussex District and Borough Councils Highlighted in Green)

Council name

Type of 

council

Basic 

Allowance 

for 

2019/2020 Leader

Deputy 

Leader

Cabinet 

Member / 

Portfolio 

Holder

Cabinet 

Member / 

Non Portfolio 

Holder

Chair Audit 

Committee

Licensing 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Licensing 

Committee

Members of 

Licensing 

Committee

Planning 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Planning 

Committee

Members of 

Planning 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Co-optee

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Deputy 

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Opposition 

Group Leader

Deputy 

Opposition 

Leader Group Leader

Committee 

Chair

Independent 

Person 

Allowance

Do you 

operate the 

'1 SRA per 

councillor' 

rule?

Royal 

Borough of 

Windsor and 

Maidenhead Unitary £8,143.00 £24,482.00 £13,434.00 £12,215.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,107.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,107.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,107.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,060.00 £1,020.00 £4,886.00 £0.00 £1,221.00 £0.00 £500.00 Yes

Runnymede 

Borough 

Council District £4,000.00 £10,000.00 £2,500.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,650.00 £5,000.00 £2,500.00 £0.00 £8,750.00 £5,827.00 £2,913.00 £5,000.00 £2,500.00 £0.00 £5,000.00 £1,250.00 £3,750.00 £0.00 £3,750.00 £5,000.00 £460.00 No

Rushmoor 

Borough 

Council District £5,202.00 £16,167.00 £9,312.00 £8,027.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,422.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,422.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,042.00 £1,213.00 £0.00 £1,514.00 £0.00 £3,258.00 £0.00 £3,258.00 £4,042.00 £500.00 Yes

Sevenoaks 

District 

Council District £5,467.00 £20,000.00 £12,000.00 £7,000.00 £1,600.00 £2,500.00 £2,500.00 £0.00 £135.00 £5,000.00 £1,000.00 £500.00 £2,500.00 £0.00 £0.00 £10,418.00 £4,552.00 £270.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,500.00 £1,000.00 Yes

Slough 

Borough 

Council Unitary £7,779.00 £20,224.00 £14,156.00 £11,123.00 £0.00 £3,033.00 £3,033.00 £1,011.00 £0.00 £5,056.00 £1,684.00 £0.00 £7,080.00 £1,415.00 £0.00 £7,626.00 £2,990.00 £6,067.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,314.00 Yes

South Bucks 

District 

Council District £4,896.00 £14,198.00 £7,099.00 £6,365.00 £0.00 £2,448.00 £2,448.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,917.00 £979.00 £734.00 £3,917.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,917.00 £1,616.00 £0.00 £0.00 £832.00 £734.00 £200.00 Yes

South 

Oxfordshire 

District 

Council District £4,892.00 £19,565.00 £13,696.00 £9,782.00 £0.00 £1,468.00 £1,956.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,870.00 £2,935.00 £0.00 £2,935.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,892.00 £1,468.00 £1,956.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,935.00 £0.00 Yes

Southampton 

City Council Unitary £12,636.00 £25,272.00 £0.00 £12,636.00 £0.00 £6,318.00 £6,318.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,318.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,318.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,477.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £700.00 Yes

Spelthorne 

Borough 

Council District £6,200.00 £14,259.00 £9,412.00 £7,130.00 £7,130 £3,566.00 £4,991.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,703.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,991.00 £0.00 £0.00 £13,800.00 £4,700.00 £3,322.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Surrey County 

Council County £12,442.80 £43,085.87 £27,924.00 £22,544.93 10,000.00 £10,019.97 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £12,024.00 £1,503.00 £0.00 £12,024.00 £1,503.00 £0.00 £18,035.95 £6,512.98 £6,012.00 £0.00 £170.34 £10,019.97 £0.00 No

Surrey Heath 

Borough 

Council District £5,087.08 £13,864.00 £8,686.00 £4,626.00 £0.00 £3,700.00 £3,700.00 £1,849.00 £0.00 £4,283.00 £2,141.00 £0.00 £3,700.00 £1,478.00 £0.00 £4,823.00 £1,607.00 £4,626.00 £0.00 £4,626.00 £0.00 £500.00 Yes

Swale 

Borough 

Council District £5,108.65 £19,304.62 £0.00 £11,582.77 £5,791.91 £1,930.98 £1,930.98 £0.00 £0.00 £6,756.36 £0.00 £0.00 £5,791.91 £0.00 £0.00 £3,652.32 £1,565.28 £5,791.91 £1,930.98 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Tandridge 

District 

Council District £4,317.00 £6,123.00 £1,531.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,062.00 £1,021.00 £591.00 £3,062.00 £1,021.00 £0.00 £3,062.00 £1,021.00 £3,062.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,062.00 £0.00 No

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

30



APPENDIX C - Comparable Allowances of District and Borough Councils 

in the South East Region.

(West Sussex District and Borough Councils Highlighted in Green)

Council name

Type of 

council

Basic 

Allowance 

for 

2019/2020 Leader

Deputy 

Leader

Cabinet 

Member / 

Portfolio 

Holder

Cabinet 

Member / 

Non Portfolio 

Holder

Chair Audit 

Committee

Licensing 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Licensing 

Committee

Members of 

Licensing 

Committee

Planning 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Planning 

Committee

Members of 

Planning 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

Chair

Deputy Chair 

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee

Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Co-optee

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Deputy 

Chair/Civic 

Mayor

Opposition 

Group Leader

Deputy 

Opposition 

Leader Group Leader

Committee 

Chair

Independent 

Person 

Allowance

Do you 

operate the 

'1 SRA per 

councillor' 

rule?

Test Valley 

Borough 

Council District £6,848.00 £12,982.00 £8,874.00 £8,271.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,122.00 £824.00 £0.00 £5,149.00 £1,041.00 £0.00 £6,848.00 £1,370.00 £0.00 £3,067.00 £603.00 £3,067.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Thanet 

District 

Council District £4,570.00 £18,082.00 £10,776.00 £7,990.00 £7,990.00 £5,204.00 £3,216.00 £805.00 £0.00 £5,204.00 £1,216.00 £0.00 £7,990.00 £3,216.00 £0.00 £2,188.00 £1,530.00 £5,762.00 £2,862.00 £0.00 £0.00 £250.00 Yes

Tonbridge 

and Malling 

Borough 

Council District £5,000.00 £20,000.00 £15,000.00 £8,500.00 £0.00 £2,500.00 £2,500.00 £625.00 £0.00 £1,665.00 £325.00 £0.00 £2,500.00 £625.00 £0.00 £5,990.00 £1,420.00 £1,250.00 £0.00 £1,250.00 £1,600.00 £513.00 Yes

Tunbridge 

Wells 

Borough 

Council District £5,500.00 £19,250.00 £0.00 £11,000.00 £0.00 £1,375.00 £1,375.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,500.00 £1,320.00 £0.00 £1,375.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,380.00 £1,080.00 £0.00 £0.00 £275.00 £0.00 £800.00 No

Waverley 

Borough 

Council District £4,867.43 £14,298.47 £9,898.55 £6,599.37 £0.00 £3,299.18 £3,299.18 £1,651.12 £0.00 £3,299.18 £1,651.12 £0.00 £3,299.18 £1,651.12 £0.00 £576.97 £0.00 £3,299.18 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Yes

Wealden 

District 

Council District £4,611.00 £13,488.00 £5,577.00 £5,577.00 £0.00 £3,774.00 £1,371.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,251.00 £1,404.00 £0.00 £3,774.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,782.00 £1,182.00 £381.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £825.00 No

West 

Berkshire 

Council Unitary £7,697.00 £19,242.00 £11,545.00 £9,622.00 £0.00 £2,887.00 £2,887.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,810.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,810.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,773.00 £1,155.00 £7,697.00 £0.00 £1,902.00 £0.00 £1,051.00 Yes

West 

Oxfordshire 

District 

Council District £4,800.00 £21,600.00 £14,400.00 £12,000.00 £0.00 £1,200.00 £1,200.00 £0.00 £0.00 £6,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,800.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,800.00 £0.00 £2,400.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £900.00 No

West Sussex 

County 

Council County £11,642.00 £32,297.00 £23,254.00 £20,670.00 £0.00 £9,114.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,114.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,114.00 £0.00 £0.00 £20,670.00 £8,221.00 £4,153.00 £0.00 £4,153.00 £9,114.00 £0.00 Yes

Winchester 

City Council District £5,808.00 £17,412.00 £9,501.00 £7,914.00 £0.00 £3,168.00 £3,168.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,914.00 £2,376.00 £0.00 £7,914.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,376.00 £0.00 £7,914.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £400.00 Yes

Woking 

Borough 

Council District £7,200.00 £12,000.00 £3,600.00 £2,400.00 £0.00 £0.00 £600.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,400.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,200.00 £0.00 £0.00 £14,383.00 £1,444.00 £1,200.00 £0.00 £600.00 £0.00 £360.00 Yes

Wokingham 

Borough 

Council Unitary £7,784.00 £20,000.00 £0.00 £10,000.00 £2,000.00 £2,500.00 £2,500.00 £0.00 £0.00 £5,000.00 £0.00 £1,250.00 £5,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,420.00 £1,960.00 £7,500.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,000.00 Yes

Worthing 

Borough 

Council District £4,929.72 £14,789.16 £7,394.58 £6,162.15 £0.00 £2,464.86 £3,697.29 £1,232.43 £0.00 £4,929.72 £1,232.43 £0.00 £3,697.29 £1,232.43 £0.00 £2,464.86 £0.00 £2,464.86 £1,232.43 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 No

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

31



Scrutiny Committee for Housing, 
Planning and Economic Growth - 15 

Members

Scrutiny Committee
for Community, Customer Services 
and Service Delivery -  15 Members

Scrutiny Committee
for Leader, Finance and 

Performance -  15 Members

Audit Committee
7 Members

Cabinet

- Leader of the Council
- Cabinet Members for:

- Economic Growth
- Finance and Performance
- Environment and Service

Delivery
- Customer Services
- Community
- Housing and Planning

Council
54 Members

Licensing Committee
15 Members

Liquor Licensing 
Panel

3 Members

Licensing 
Sub Committee A

5 Members

District Planning 
Committee

12 Members

Planning 
Committee  

12 Members

Standards 
Committee 6 

Members

4 Appointed 
Town/Parish 

Members

2 Independant 
Persons

Scrutiny and Policy Development Executive Regulatory Committees

  MSDC Committee Structure 
Appendix D MSDC Committee Structure

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

32



 

CHANGES TO THE EXISTING COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME FOR 2020/21 AND THE 
INTRODUCTION OF A BANDED INCOME APPROACH 

Purpose of Report 

1. This report sets out proposals for changes to the existing Council Tax Support scheme for Mid 
Sussex DC including the introduction of a Banded Income approach for working age claimants 
for 2020/21 following public consultation. 

Summary 

2. The current Council Tax Support Scheme is in need of change due to the ongoing roll out of the 
full Service of Universal Credit.  The major change proposed is the introduction of a Banded 
Income approach to the Council Tax Support Scheme to ensure the Council Tax payer does not 
face so many changes in the year to the bill they pay should their income change each month, 
as well as make administration simpler. 

3. The Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance of the 4th September 2019 
looked at a scheme originally.  They were happy that the new proposals be consulted upon. 

4. An 8 week consultation took place and no major objections of the proposals were raised.  After 
the consultation the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance on 
the 20th November 2019 agreed that the new proposals including the introduction of a Banded 
Income approach to the Council Tax Support Scheme go to Council.   

Recommendations  

5. That Full Council:- 

A. Adopts the Banded Income approach to its Council Tax Support Scheme for 2020/21 
and other changes for people of working age as set out at Appendix B; and 

B. Authorises the Head of Corporate Resources in collaboration with the Customer 
Services Portfolio Holder to make minor textual amendments and any relevant changes 
required by amendments to Prescribed Regulations introduced by the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) for 2020/21. 

Background 

6. Council Tax Support is to help people on low incomes pay their Council Tax.  For 2013/14, the 
Council approved a Council Tax Support scheme for working age applicants. The scheme for 
older people is set in legislation and the Council has no discretion to alter or modify the 
pensioner Council Tax Support scheme arrangements. The scheme remained unchanged for 
2013/14, apart from uprated premiums and living allowances in line with Government 
announcements. 

7. Changes were made to the Council Tax Support Scheme for 2014/15. These were:- 

a. All working age applicants for Local Council Tax support to be required to pay at least 
39% towards their Council Tax liability, unless in a designated vulnerable group; 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
Contact Officer: Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources 

Email: peter.stuart@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477315 
Wards Affected: All 
Key Decision: No 
Report to: Council 

 18th December 2019 

Council - 18 December 2019 33

Agenda Item 8



 

b. The current protected vulnerable groups can receive maximum Council Tax Support 
(CTS) of 100% (if their income supports this) as they are not expected to look for work.  
These groups include anyone with an award of:- 

i - a disability premium within Council Tax Support or Working Tax Credit 

ii - the support group of Employment and Support Allowance 

iii - Disability Living Allowance or Personal Independence Payment 

iv - Both Income Support and Carers allowance 

v. - A War Disablement Pension, Armed Forces Pension or Armed Forces 
Independence payments 

vi - Or any lone parent with a child under 5 years old 

c. Introduced a 15% income taper to incentivise work 

d. Increase the extended payment period so that those returning to work from legacy 
benefits would continue to receive full support for 13 weeks rather than the standard 4 
weeks. 

8. The current Council Tax Support scheme is in need of change as if a person’s income changes 
each month, as Universal Credit can, under the existing scheme this means a taxpayers support 
has to automatically change as well as the amount they pay in Council Tax.  The introduction of 
a banded income approach to the Council Tax Support Scheme will stop this happening in the 
majority of cases, making the scheme more transparent to both Council Taxpayers and the 
Council.  A number of other changes are proposed to ease the transparency of the scheme. 

 
Changes for 2020/21 
 
9.  The current Council Tax Support scheme was originally, and largely remains based on the 

previous Council Tax Benefit (CTB) scheme. This is increasingly out of step with national trends. 
To date the scheme has operated satisfactorily and with minimal impact on preceptors and 
collection authorities. 

 
10. In light of ongoing financial pressures, the introduction of Universal Credit and the need to strike 

an appropriate balance between protecting those on low incomes and being able to maintain 
essential services, officers agreed that changes to the scheme for 2020/21 including the 
introduction of a banded income approach should be considered. Officers considered and drew 
up possible options that would:- 

a) Continue to incentivise work; 
b) Maintain the overall cost; 
c) Simplify the administration of the scheme by billing authorities, 
d) Make it easier for Council Tax payers to understand. 

 
National Trends 
 
11.  As of April 2019 there are now only 36 local authorities who have made no change compared to 

the previous Council Tax Benefit Scheme. 277 out of 326 councils have cut the amount of 
support available by introducing a minimum payment or a band cap: 264 schemes now include a 
minimum payment. The size of the minimum payment varies by area: in 45 councils it is less than 
10%; in 136 councils it is between 20% to 29%; for 23 councils it is 30% or more. Twenty eight 
councils currently use Banded Income approach to their Council Tax Support Schemes, with up 
to 100 more expected to be introduced in 2020/21. 

 
 
 
 

Council - 18 December 2019 34



 

Proposals 
 
12.  It used to make sense to broadly align the scheme with Housing Benefit - in the same way as the 

previous Council Tax Benefit scheme. But as benefits change, and especially because of the 
introduction of Universal Credit, it is more difficult to keep the scheme aligned, making it difficult 
for people to understand and adds to the complexity and cost of the scheme for the Council.  

 
13. Since the rollout of Universal Credit Full Service took place in the Mid Sussex area in June 2018 

people are confused by and unsure of their Council Tax liability due to constant changes in the 
level of Council Tax Support. This is because every time the award of Universal Credit changes 
means with the current scheme works we have to recalculate entitlement to Council Tax Support, 
as even a change of one penny in income can mean a change in the amount of support people 
get as well as the amount of Council Tax they need to pay. On average 40% of Universal Credit 
recipients have between eight and twelve changes a year, largely with monthly changes to 
earnings. Members may wish to note that Universal Credit is also paid to people in work on low 
earnings.  Indeed at Mid Sussex DC 42% of people on Universal Credit are on low earnings 
against a national average of 35%. 

 
14. If the current scheme continues unchanged at Mid Sussex DC without the introduction of a 

Banded Income approach to our Council Tax Support scheme we believe based on analysis of 
other Local Authorities this could result in a fall in overall collection rates of 1% together with 
additional administration costs equating to 1 to 2 FTE. The need for additional resources could 
increase over time as more people move on to Universal Credit. The implication in having a 
monthly change to Council Tax Support is that a new bill will be produced each month.  This can 
lead to direct debits not being taken as 14 days’ notice has to be given. Uncollected amounts will 
not be subject to the usual recovery process if new bills are continually issued with each change 
to Universal Credit. 

 
15.  The National Audit Office (NAO) report ‘Rolling Out Universal Credit’, published on 15th June 

2018 highlighted the impact of full-service Universal Credit on existing Council Tax Reduction 
schemes. The report noted that the issue could be alleviated if local authorities redesigned their 
schemes.  

 
16.  A simplified banding approach will mean that only significant changes in income will affect the 

level of discount awarded. Entitlement will still be based on income but in a broader approach 
than the current rigid means tested model. This would make the scheme simpler, easier for 
people to understand, and reduce the effect of changes in someone’s income on their Council 
Tax liability. Council Tax payers who receive Council Tax Support should receive fewer Council 
Tax demands and adjustments to their instalments. Officers feel that the changes will ensure the 
scheme remains viable whilst offering protection to the most vulnerable.  

 
17. Following the Scrutiny Committee Meeting for Leader, Finance and Performance on the 4th 

September 2019, the following options were agreed to be put to public consultation: 

a. To continue to base the scheme on the default Council Tax Support Scheme set by the 
Government, 

b. To use a banded income approach to its Council Tax Support Scheme where the 
percentage of Council Tax that householders are liable to pay is based on the income 
band each household falls into (this is based on the customers’ needs and finances), 

c. Unless in a protected vulnerable group, all people of working age will need to pay at least 
40% towards their Council Tax, 

d. The protected vulnerable groups will remain for the new proposed scheme as in the 
existing scheme, as outlined in paragraph 10 above, 

e. A flat rate of deduction for all non-dependants of £4 per week (Non-dependants are often 
people like grown-up sons and daughters or elderly relatives. A non-dependant is a 
person who lives with you but is not liable for paying rent under a formal arrangement).  
This excludes:- 

I. non-dependants in households where the claimant and/or partner are in receipt of 
the care component of disability living allowance or the daily living component or 
personal independence payments or attendance allowance, and 

Council - 18 December 2019 35



 

II. Non-dependents in households where they are on passported benefits (in receipt 
of Income Support, Job Seekers Allowance (income based), Employment and 
Support Allowance (income related) or Guaranteed Pension Credit) or they are in 
receipt of Universal Credit and are not working, 

f. The removal of second adult rebate for people of working age, see below 
g. The introduction of a minimum income floor for self-employed claimants, see below 
h. Increase in backdating to 12 months providing good cause is demonstrated, 
i. Alignment with Housing Benefit regulations for late notified changes, 
j. Alignment with Housing Benefit regulations for changes that occur in year, and 
k. No claim form is required for CTS where UC is claimed.  

 
18.  Information about the effects of these options was set out in the consultation documents. Further 

details are set out at Appendix B. 
 
Consultation 
 
19.  Before making a new scheme, or changes to the scheme, the Council must, in the following 

order: 
a) Consult major preceptors (County and Police); then 
b) Consult such other persons as it considers are likely to have an interest in the 
operation of the Scheme. 

 
20.  DCLG (now MHCLG) gave further advice in its Statement of Intent prior to the original schemes 

being introduced: 
a) When consulting on support schemes billing authorities should ensure all interested 
parties are able to give their view and influence the design of the support scheme. (This 
includes voluntary organisations and special interest groups.); 
b) The consultation feedback should help identify where there may be any adverse 
impacts to any particular group. Billing authorities must also understand whether there are 
any groups or individuals that are adversely impacted by any changes when making their 
final decisions on a local scheme; 
c) The public consultation should be carried out as early as possible to ensure feedback 
can influence the scheme and allow sufficient time for the feedback to be gathered, 
impacts to be understood, and a scheme to be shaped. 

 
21. The consultation about the proposed changes to the Mid Sussex Council Tax Support Scheme 

met these tests. The consultation was over an 8-week period starting 6th September 2019 and 
ending 1st November 2019. Collation of the results took place between 1st November 2019 and 
8th November 2019. A summary of the results, including all comments made by those responding 
is included as appendix A to this report and is information Members must consider when deciding 
upon the 2020/21 scheme. 

 
22.  Stakeholders were identified at the outset and were made aware of the consultation during the 8 

week period. We held a Universal Credit Stakeholder Group Meeting in September 2019 with a 
specific presentation on the proposals. Special interest groups and other organisations who were 
invited to take part were the precepting Authorities, Clarion RSL, Stepchange, the local Job 
Centre Plus and foodbanks.  We also met separately with the Citizens Advice West Sussex.  We 
issued a press release as well as advertising the consultation in our website, within our email 
signatures and on every Benefit/Council Tax Support notification sent to customers during this 
period.  The Benefits Service also wrote directly the Council Tax Support recipients who could 
receive the biggest negative change in awards. 

 
23.  The total number of residents that responded to the consultation was very low.  There were only 

6 responses, 5 of those who are currently in receipt of Council Tax Support. Although there were 
very few responses this is in line with the responses that other authorities have received with 
similar consultations.  Two other responses were received, one from the Sussex Police and 
Crime Commissioner and the other from Citizens Advice West Sussex. 

 
24. Full results of the consultation and the comments of respondents are set out at Appendix A. 
 

Council - 18 December 2019 36



 

Amendments to Scheme, including the Introduction of a Banded Income Approach 
 
25. The most significant change proposed to the current scheme is the introduction of a Banded 

Income approach to our Council Tax Support Scheme.  There are a number of other changes 
proposed too. 

 
26.  Schedule 1A (5)(4) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 states that ‘If any revision to a 

scheme, or any replacement scheme, has the effect of reducing or removing a reduction to which 
any class of persons is entitled, the revision or replacement must include such transitional 
provision relating to that reduction or removal as the authority thinks fit’.  

 
27. Every year the Government introduce prescribed rules and regulations for Council Tax Support 

for both people of working age and older people.  We are obliged to bring these in but the report 
gives delegated authority to the Head of Corporate Resources to introduce these for 20210/21 in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Customer Services. 

 
Conclusion 
 
28. The Council is recommending changes to the existing Council Tax Support scheme for 2020/21 

for working age people, including the introduction of a banded income approach. These will 
ensure the scheme continues to protect those on low incomes whilst balancing the need to be 
fair to all local taxpayers and control costs. Appendix C shows individual calculations of the 
proposed scheme. 

 
Further Steps 
 
29. Should the scheme be approved, the Revenues and Benefit Service will again continue to work 

with taxpayers who appear to be potentially worse off under the new proposed scheme.  We are 
also committed to signposting people to Third Sector Advice Agencies such as West Sussex 
Citizens Advice and Stepchange. 

 
30. This assistance will include continuing to see if they are entitled to any additional discounts, 

exemption, benefits and other financial help or by using our Employment Project Co-ordinator to 
help them in finding employment or increasing their earnings.  The Revenues and Benefits 
Service has already had success in identifying additional other help in some cases where without 
this the person could receive a smaller award with the proposed new Council Tax Support 
scheme. 

 

31. The service will continue to communicate with existing customers in receipt of Council Tax 
Support that are currently self-employed to advise them of the changes to the scheme they will 
face with the introduction of the minimum income floor from April 2021. 

 

Policy Context 

32. The Banded Income Council Tax Support scheme for 2020/21 will need to be amended and 
approved by full Council by the 11th March 2020, although there is a need to do it before this to 
ensure the timely and accurate Council Tax Billing for 2020/21.  Our timetable complies with this. 

 

Financial Implications 

33. It is anticipated that the cost of the scheme will be 0.82% higher than the current scheme.  
Members should note that the Council Tax base report on the same agenda takes this small 
variation into account.  A breakdown of the figures is available in Appendix B.  The revised 
figures have been calculated using the same scheme as the previous report but with current data 
on claimants and their income.  Please note that these figures will continue to change up to, and 
after, April 2020. 

Council - 18 December 2019 37



 

34. There will be other costs if members are minded to approve the Banded Income approach to our 
Council Tax Support scheme for 2020/21 such as new software to administer it.  Without this the 
scheme would be very labour intensive. 

35. There will also be a need should members approve any new scheme to write a comprehensive 
Banded Income Council Tax Support Scheme for Mid Sussex DC and publish it by the 11th 
March 2020.  External help may be brought in to assist with this. 

Equality and Customer Service Implications  

36. An Equalities Impact Assessment has been prepared and is attached as Appendix D. 

Other Material Implications 

37. The Local Government Finance Act 1992 as amended by the Council Tax Reduction Schemes 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2017 requires Council to approve a scheme for 2020/21 by 
11th March 2020.  The Act contains a statutory duty to consult on a proposed scheme, with 
guiding principles for fair consultation set out in case law.  These Regulations do not impose a 
requirement on authorities in relation to what specific information and evidence they should 
obtain or indeed implement from such a consultation. 

 
Appendices 

A. Proposed Council Tax Support changes for 2020/21 including introduction of Banded Income 
Approach Consultation Feedback. 

B. Proposed Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS) for 2020/21 including introduction of Banded 
Income Approach. 

C. Individual Calculations of proposed scheme 

D. Equality Impact Assessment 

 

Council - 18 December 2019 38



Appendix A 

Appendix A – Proposed Council Tax Support changes for 2020/21 including 
introduction of Banded Income Approach Consultation Feedback 
 

1. An open question was raised for general comments on the scheme. A notable 
response was ”I particularly like the change to Non-dependant charges, as my 
daughter is 18, I need to pay £60 a month Council tax. I feel penalised as full 
time carer, and money is extremely tight, as I am home with disabled son 6 days 
a week, I can only work 1 day a week. My daughter helps care for him. I like the 
April 2020 changes as my family will be better off for it.” 

 

2. In responses to the individual questions we only asked for alternative 
suggestions and comments where the response was ‘no’ or ‘I don’t know’  

 
3. The responses to individual amendments to the scheme were as follows 

 

a. To use a banded scheme where the percentage of Council Tax that 
householders are liable to pay is based on the income band each household falls 
into; 

 
Stakeholders were supportive of this change as they accepted the financial 
uncertainty that changes to Council Tax Support (CTS) for those in receipt of 
Universal Credit (UC) needs to be minimised. Citizens Advice West Sussex 
(CAWS) had concerns over those who would be receiving a reduced amount of 
support but the Council has reassured them that we will work with these people 
to minimise financial hardship.  The Council will also provide an escalation route 
to CAWS for independent advice if individuals have any concerns.  

 
Of the consultation questionnaires that were completed by residents one 
response suggested that we only charge Council Tax to those who own their 
properties and not those who rent. This would lead to inflated rental prices with 
no additional assistance and would cause greater hardship. Another voiced 
concern that we should keep the scheme the same and not make money from 
the poor and vulnerable people. The scheme is set out to be cost neutral and not 
to make money.   

  

b. A flat rate of deduction for all non-dependants of £4 per week (Non-dependants 
are often people like grown-up sons and daughters or elderly relatives. A non-
dependant is a person who lives with you but is not liable for paying rent under a 
formal arrangement).  This excludes:- 

I. non-dependants in households where the claimant and/or partner are in 
receipt of the care component of disability living allowance or the daily 
living component or personal independence payments or attendance 
allowance, and 

II. Non-dependents in households where they are on passported benefits (in 
receipt of Income Support, Job Seekers Allowance (income based), 
Employment and Support Allowance (income related) or Guaranteed 
Pension Credit) or they are in receipt of Universal Credit and are not 
working 

 
Stakeholders were generally supportive of this change. 
 
Of the consultation questionnaires that were completed by residents only one 
negative comment was made; stating that we should keep the deductions as 

Council - 18 December 2019 39



Appendix A 

they are as there is no need to change.  Simplifying deductions will reduce 
administrative costs, align CTS with Universal Credit and reduce the requirement 
for residents to provide evidence of their non-dependants earnings. 

 

c.  The removal of second adult rebate for people of working age 

 
Stakeholders were overall supportive of this change as it will affect very few 
people. 
 
3 of the questionnaire responses had negative responses, one said there was no 
need for change, one was concerned that changes were futile as the next 
government will change the scheme anyway. The final concern was that many 
people are carers of SEND children or the elderly. There are other discounts, 
reliefs and exemptions which are available for carers and disabled residents. 

 

d. The introduction of a minimum income floor (MIF) for self-employed claimants 

 
CAWS had concerns over this as they have seen the effect that it has on self-
employed residents in receipt of UC.  
 
There were also 2 comments from the public.  The first was that there was no 
need for change and the other stating that we could instead make savings by 
only paying MPs for the time they were doing effective work and it would be 
unfair due to fluctuating earnings.   
 
Please see Appendix C for how if approved the Council we will apply the MIF 
sympathetically to minimise hardship. 
 

e. Increase in backdating to 12 months providing good cause is demonstrated 

 
Stakeholders were supportive of this change as it will assist the most vulnerable 
people who are unable to make a claim at the appropriate time. 
 
Of the consultation responses from the public, one again said there was no need 
for change, one said that we should only award CTS from the date they claimed 
and a third said that is all futile when the Council is taking from the sector of 
society that cannot feed themselves. 
 
To enable backdating for between 3 and 12 months the Revenues and Benefits 
Service would have to seek approval on each individual case from the section 
151 officer. This is an option that would only be used for the most financially 
challenged residents and where there is continuous good cause for them not 
claiming at an earlier date. This change is not to save any money from 
vulnerable claimants but on the contrary to assist those who are most in need. 

 

f. Alignment with Housing Benefit regulation changes 

 
Stakeholders were very much supportive of this change to simplify the scheme in 
line with housing benefit. 
 
Only one comment was received which was that we should not make changes 
as there was too much paperwork with even small changes in income. We are 
bound by regulation with the details that are required in notification letters.  By 

Council - 18 December 2019 40



Appendix A 

aligning the schemes, however, it would lead to needing less clarification and 
hopefully reduce the length of the notification letters if the Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Support schemes were more similar. 

 

g. No claim form is required for Council Tax Support where Universal Credit (UC) is 
claimed.  

 
Stakeholders were supportive of this change as it is less of a burden on Council 
Tax payers in receipt of UC, some of whom may have chaotic lives so would 
increase the chances of people being in receipt of the support they are entitled 
to. 
 
There was only one comment from the public consultation which was that we 
should scrap UC.  This is of course outside the Council’s control. 
 
Since the consultation started it has become apparent that the Council will not be 
able to remove the requirement for a CTS claim form in all cases. If the housing 
element of UC is not claimed then information is not provided on the number or 
income of non-dependents. The Benefits Service would therefore remove the 
need for a CTS claim form where possible but produce a simple 2 sided 
document for completion where we had no housing costs and therefore no 
details of non-dependents. This form will be made available in paper form as well 
as online. 

 

Council - 18 December 2019 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 

Appendix B – Proposed Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS) for 
2020/21 including introduction of Banded Income Approach 

 
 
Proposals 
 
Please note that these proposals only refer to people of Working Age.  Older people are not affected by 
these proposals. 
 
This proposal will continue to base the scheme on the default Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default 
Scheme) (England) Regulations 2012 (and all subsequent amendments), so Mid Sussex DC will continue 
to use the way that Council Tax Support has previously been calculated. 
 
It is proposed in future years that the applicable amount is raised in line with the applicable amounts used 
for Housing Benefit 
 
Preferred option for banded income scheme 
 
In calculating Council Tax Support (CTS) we currently use the income that the claimant receives, 
disregarding in full income such as child benefit, child maintenance and some disability benefits as well as 
earnings disregards which will be in line with those in Housing Benefit or Universal Credit for those who are 
in receipt of that. The Council will then deduct the final income figure from the applicable amount which is 
the amount the government says you need to live on from the total income. In the case of Universal Credit 
claims the Council will use the maximum award of UC as the applicable amount. 
 
We propose to continue to do this in the new proposed scheme.  The ‘excess income’ which is the amount 
of income received after any disregarded income and the applicable amount will then be used to calculate 
the percentage of CTS they will be entitled to. It is proposed that this is calculated as follows: 
 
 

Band Excess income Protected Group Non Protected Group 

1 -£30 (including 
passported claims) 

100% 60% 

2 £30.00 – £59.99 80% 45% 

3 £60.00 - £94.99 60% 35% 

4 £95.00 – £129.99 40% 25% 

5 £130.00 - £164.99 20% 15% 

6 £165.00 + 0% 0% 

 
  

Council - 18 December 2019 43



Appendix B 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Preferred option for non-dependent deduction 
 
A further consideration to be made is in regards to non-dependant deductions. Currently, they are worked 
out as follows 
 

Non Deps Circumstances Deduction from CTS per week 

Not working or working less than 16 hours per 
week 

£4.00 

Aged under 25 and in receipt of Income Support, 
Jobseekers Allowance (Income Based), 
Employment and Support Allowance (Income 
Related) or over 25 and in receipt of Pension 
Credit 

£0.00 (Nil) 

In receipt of Universal Credit and working less 
than 16 hours 

£0.00 (Nil) 

Aged over 25 and in receipt of Income Support 
or Jobseekers Allowance (Income Based) 

£4.00 

 
  
 

Non Deps working 16 hours or more per week 
Gross Weekly Income Deduction from CTS per week 

Less than £208.99 £4.00 

£209 – £362.99 £8.10 

£363 – £450.99 £10.20 

£451 and over £12.20 

 
This means that as well as information on the income of the claimant and partner we also need information 
on the income of the non-dependents.  
 
Currently unless the claimant or partner are in receipt of the daily living component of Personal 
Independence Payments or the care component of Disability Living Allowance; there is a potential for a 
deduction to be taken. Due to computer system limitations this must continue.  However, there are options 
of how to reduce the administration by making the scheme simpler. 
 
A flat rate of £4.00 deduction for non-dependants who would have a deduction based on the default 
scheme as above is preferred in terms of deduction, but differs from the CTS default regulations. 
 
This would mean that we would only need to know the number of non-dependants in a property.  We can 
obtain information of benefits they receive through the DWP systems, which would increase the speed of 
processing and reduce the information requested from the customer.  Officers are proposing this to simplify 
the administration of the CTS Scheme. 
 
Preferred option for Self-Employed earners 
 
The banded income scheme would address the issue of collection of Council Tax and the number of award 
letters and bills that need to be posted.  Unfortunately, it does not reduce the administration with regards to 
assessing the claims. Each change would still need to be assessed to see if it will change into a higher or 
lower band but unless it changes the award, Mid Sussex DC would not need to issue a Council Tax notice 
and change any payment due date. 
 
We have the option to consider how we calculate the income of self-employed earners.  They way self-
employed earnings are calculated in Universal Credit is significantly different to the way we currently 
assess them for Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.  The way Universal credit calculate self-
employed earnings is that if the customer was not earning the national minimum wage multiplied by the 

Council - 18 December 2019 44



Appendix B 

3 | P a g e  
 

number of hours they were expected to work then they would assume a level of income equal to that.  The 
number of hours that people are expected to work is determined by health conditions and the ages of their 
dependent children. We intend to follow the Universal Credit guidelines to determine these hours. 
 
In recent years, there has been a significant move to self-employment which was encouraged by Job 
Centres to reduce the unemployment levels, but also undertaken voluntarily by claimants to remove the 
need to look for work. This has led to a number of claimants who are not in genuine and effective work.  
 
The proposed scheme recommended by officers would take into consideration the number of hours that 
someone would be expected to work given their circumstances around health and parental responsibility. 
Officers are proposing, following the consultation, that all claimants were given a year’s notice from April 
2020 that this will be the way their income will be assessed before it is introduced.  For all new CTS claims 
it would be effective from a year after the self-employment commenced which may be immediately. 
 
The intention of using a minimum income floor, similar to that which universal credit applies, is to simplify 
the administration of having to calculate self-employed accounts which would reduce the need for complex 
annual reviews.  
 
Officers are proposing to use a Minimum Income Floor for self-employed earners so that they are treated 
the same as people on Universal Credit.  We have as part of the consultation feedback proposed giving 
one years notice of the introduction of this and considering it sympathetically.   
 
Where claimants are in receipt of Universal Credit (UC) the Council are obliged by regulations to take the 
income into account as the DWP have calculated it.  

 
For all other residents who are currently self-employed we will write to them in April 2020 to advise that the 
Council will be using the minimum income floor (MIF) from April 2021.  
 
For new claims where UC is not in payment we may apply the MIF from 12 months from the date that they 
started their business.  
 
The level of hours used for the MIF consider the circumstance of the household; if they are employed and 
self-employed the hours for both will all be taken into account when calculating the MIF. 
 
For those with caring responsibilities of a child or children where the youngest is; 

 

Under 3 No minimum income floor will be applied, 
earnings will be calculated as they are for 
Housing Benefit. 

Aged 3-4 Minimum income floor will be calculated 
if you are earning less than 10 hours 
multiplied by national minimum wage for 
your age group 

Aged 5-12 Minimum income floor will be calculated 
if you are earning less than 24 hours 
multiplied by national minimum wage for 
your age group 

13 and over Minimum income floor will be calculated 
if you are earning less than 35 hours 
multiplied by national minimum wage for 
your age group 

 

The minimum income floor will only apply for customers in the 'all-work-related requirements group'.  This 
means that they are expected to work or look for work.  

Council - 18 December 2019 45



Appendix B 

4 | P a g e  
 

They are not in the all-work-related requirements group if they: 

 look after a child under 3 
 are pregnant and it is not more than 12 weeks until your due date  
 have given birth in the last 15 weeks 
 are caring for a severely disabled person 
 have been assessed as having limited capability for work or limited capability for work-related 

activity within universal credit or you are in the work group or the support group of Employment and 
Support Allowance 

 are in full-time education 
 have adopted a child within the last 12 months  
 are a foster parent of a child under 16 
 are a carer for a friend of family member 
 are under threat of domestic violence or recently have been 

In line with Universal Credit rules to use the minimum income floor customers would have to be gainfully 
self-employed.  This means that they have self-employed earnings and their work is organised, developed, 
regular and in expectation of profit, and if they are signed off sick for a prolonged period the Council will be 
able to use its discretion. 

 
The Council will also be able to use its discretion where people have genuine cause for not earning the 
expected levels following a significant change.  An example of this is if someone is a cleaner and has 
regular clients and moves to Mid Sussex from a different area the Council would be able to allow a grace 
period while clients were sought in the new area. 
 
When calculating income to see if it is necessary to apply the minimum income floor the Council will use an 
average of the income earned within the previous 12 months or a shorter period if that will be more 
reflective of the on-going income. 
 
Notional Tax and class 2 and 4 National insurance will be deducted from the gross earnings as well as 50% 
of pension contributions that are actually made 
 
The Council is keen to work with those who will face hardship by the use of the minimum income floor 
either to increase their income from the current business they have or by assisting them to find employed 
work if their business is not sustainable. The Council’s Benefits Service has a dedicated member of the 
team, the Employment Project Co-Ordinator, to assist those into work where they have been 
disadvantaged by welfare reform.  The Council will also signpost customers to independent advice such as 
the local Citizens Advice. 
 
Preferred option for backdating of Council Tax Support 
 
For older people, for both Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support the maximum backdating period is 3 
months (this will remain the maximum pensioners).  For working age customers, currently, for Housing 
Benefit the backdating period is 1 month with continuous good cause and for Council Tax Support it is 6 
months.  It is proposed in the new scheme for working age customers that a backdating period of 12 
months is allowed if continuous good cause is proven.  Any decision to backdate over 3 months must be 
approved by the Head of Corporate Resources.  
 
Preferred option for late notified changes 
 
We also propose to adopt the late notified change rule from Housing Benefit, so that if a customer has a 
change in circumstances that would increase the level of support but does not notify us within one month 
then they will only benefit for Council Tax Support from the change from the Monday following the date that 
they notified us. 
 
 
 

Council - 18 December 2019 46



Appendix B 

5 | P a g e  
 

Preferred option for changes throughout the year 
 
If the Government make changes during the year to Housing Benefit, such as introducing the Mixed Age 
Couples regulations, the Head of Corporate Resources in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Customer Services can make changes to the Council Tax Support scheme during the year so that the 
Council Tax Support scheme mirrors the Housing Benefit Scheme.  The Council proposes to adopt some of 
the current Housing Benefit changes e.g. late notified change rules, as this will help make administration of 
the two schemes simpler for the Council and more transparent for the customer. 
 
Preferred option for Second Adult Rebate 
 
Currently there are 11 working age customers in receipt of 2nd Adult rebate.  To simplify the administration 
officers, recommend that we no longer consider this rebate. 
 
Preferred option for claim forms 
 
The Council’s Benefit Service should write into the scheme that we do not need a claim form for a customer 
to make a claim for CTS where UC has been claimed. The Council can use the information provided on the 
Universal Credit data share which would mean that the processing time would be reduced as no further 
information would need to be requested. In addition to this, there are circumstances within Universal Credit 
where, due to payment frequencies and assessment periods, claimants’ earnings can be taken into account 
twice in one assessment period which removes their entitlement to UC. So in removing the claim form, we 
could recommence the CTS without the need to invite them to reclaim once they went back into entitlement 
to UC. 
 
Officers recommend that no claim form is required for CTS where UC is claimed.  This will not be 
appropriate where there are no housing costs as we will not receive information on non-dependents from 
DWP in these cases. Where this situation arises and additional information is required a simple short form 
will be designed. 
 
Impact on Claimant’s and Customers 
 
Within a banded income approach to the Council Tax Support Scheme, there will inevitably be people who 
will receive higher awards and those receiving lower amounts depending on where in the income band they 
sit and this can lead to cliff edges.  There will, however, be fewer changes to the award within the year and 
therefore, it will be easier for those people who are financially vulnerable to budget. Those claimants who 
are currently in receipt of 100% Council Tax Support due to being in a protected group will remain with this 
award. Those who were not in a protected group previously would receive a maximum reduction of 61% of 
the liability with the current scheme.  Under the proposed new scheme this would change to 60%. The 
reason for this change is that by keeping it at round numbers is makes the scheme easier to understand.  
The impact of this for a claimant in Burgess Hill in a Band C property would be that they would be expected 
to pay an extra 10p per week towards their Council Tax. 
 
These figures are based on the current expenditure and revised expenditure of a claimant’s award based 
on the amount they currently receive on each scheme being a consistent rate for the whole of 2019/20. 
Therefore some variation should be expected when actual bills are produced in March 2020 for the 2020/21 
financial year.  
 
This analysis has been split into passported, non passported and Universal credit claims for protected and 
non-protected groups. Income Based Job Seekers Allowance, Income Support or Income Related 
Employment and Support Allowance are known as passported benefits as they passport the recipient to the 
maximum amount of Housing Benefit based on their financial circumstances. 
  

Council - 18 December 2019 47



Appendix B 

6 | P a g e  
 

 

Group Description 

Current Year Future Year Additional 
Cost to the 
Collection 

Fund 

Additional 
Cost % 

Current 
Count 

Current 
Expenditure 

Revised 
count 

Expenditure 
(Toolkit 

Parameters) 

Non-Passported - Protected 356 £373,114 356 £376,184 £3,070 0.82% 

Non- Passported 713 £367,744 713 £370,123 £2,379 0.65% 

Passported - Protected 1132 £1,404,618 1132 £1,406,986 £2,369 0.17% 

Passported  130 £93,373 130 £92,357 -£1,016 -1.09% 

UC – Protected 364 £373,935 364 £383,097 £9,162 2.45% 

UC 538 £287,123 538 £294,827 £7,705 2.68% 

TOTAL 3233 £2,899,907 3233 £2,923,574 £23,666 0.82% 
 
This is showing an increase in expenditure to the Council for the year of £23,666.  This additional cost will 
be met from the Collection Fund.  Having spoken to other authorities such as Wealden DC it is important to 
understand and expect that when this scheme is worked out on a live system for the following financial year 
it is likely that the cost will differ when the scheme is introduced. The figures shown are the awards based 
on the income and situation of the current caseload as at 31st March 2020 for both the current and the 
proposed scheme. There are factors that should be noted which are that the Council Tax liability will 
increase in April, it is also likely that benefits and applicable amounts will increase, and customers 
circumstances will change.  When the same figures were produced at different times of the year for 
previous Scrutiny Committee reports they differed slightly to show amounts of £9,269 and £19,493 as an 
additional cost to the collection fund. 
 
In addition to this expenditure, it should also be noted that the current expenditure for pensioners on 
Council Tax Support is in the region of £2.53 million.  
 
Based on the current caseload using these figures would result in 84 households who are currently in 
receipt of Council Tax Support no longer being entitled. The impact on these households ranges from £7 
per year to £811 per year.  
 
Only 14 of the households who are no longer entitled are in a vulnerable group.  The impact on these 
households is between £62 and £811.  
 
In calculating a scheme like this, those with the higher liabilities will have the most to lose as they 
previously would have qualified with a higher income than those in lower banded properties purely because 
of their high liability.  
 
There are 39 households in protected groups who will be worse off by over 10%; no one in a protected 
group is worse off by more than 37%. There are 52 households in non-protected groups who will be worse 
off by over 10%; no one in a protected group is worse off by more than 24% 
 
These claims are easily identified and the Revenues and Benefits Service will continue to work with them 
leading up to and beyond the 1st April 2020.  The Academy system cannot handle any transitional 
protection and would cause great issues with any subsequent changes so any award of transition would 
need to be manual e.g. award of Section 13A or the award of other discounts, disregards, exemptions 
and/or reliefs. 
 
Of course these people’s circumstances may change leading up to the 1 April 2020. 
  

Council - 18 December 2019 48



Appendix B 

7 | P a g e  
 

 
For those who are still entitled the following overall impact can be seen: 
 
Protected Households – current total 1,852 
 

Impact Number of Households affected 

No change to current award 1525 

Worse off by less than £52 per year (£1 per week) 25 

Worse off by between £52 and £104 per year (£1-£2 per week) 17 

Worse off by between £104 and £208 per year (£2-£4 per week) 12 

Worse off by between £208 and £312 per year (£4-£6 per week) 17 

Worse off by between £312 and £624 per year (£6-£12 per week) 10 

Worse off by more than £624 per year (£12 per week) 7 

Better off by less than £52 per year (£1 per week) 45 

Better off by between £52 and £104 per year (£1-£2 per week) 51 

Better off by between £104 and £208 per year (£2-£4 per week) 91 

Better off by between £208 and £312 per year (£4-£6 per week) 36 

Better off by between £312 and £624 per year (£6-£12 per week) 14 

Better off by more than £624 per year (£12 per week) 2 

 
Non-Protected Households – current total 1,381 
 

Impact Number of Households affected 

No change to current award 0 

Worse off by less than £52 per year (£1 per week) 617 

Worse off by between £52 and £104 per year (£1-£2 per week) 62 

Worse off by between £104 and £208 per year (£2-£4 per week) 68 

Worse off by between £208 and £312 per year (£4-£6 per week) 23 

Worse off by between £312 and £624 per year (£6-£12 per week) 20 

Worse off by more than £624 per year (£12 per week) 0 

Better off by less than £52 per year (£1 per week) 206 

Better off by between £52 and £104 per year (£1-£2 per week) 186 

Better off by between £104 and £208 per year (£2-£4 per week) 174 

Better off by between £208 and £312 per year (£4-£6 per week) 22 

Better off by between £312 and £624 per year (£6-£12 per week) 3 

Better off by more than £624 per year (£12 per week) 0 

 

Council - 18 December 2019 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

 
 

 
 

Appendix C – Individual Sample Calculations 

 
The following shows the impact of different households based on the current and the 
proposed Council Tax Support scheme for 2020/21. 
 
Household A is a single person in receipt of Jobseekers Allowance  
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£73.10 £73.10 

Applicable amount £73.10 £73.10 

Excess income £0.00 £0.00 

Weekly CTAX Liability £26.87 £26.87 

Weekly CTS reduction £16.39 £16.12 

Weekly Council Tax due £10.48 £10.75 

Annual Council Tax due £544.96 £559.00 

 
Under the current scheme the claimant would be expected to pay 39% of the liability, 
under the new scheme they would be in band 1 and would have a 60% reduction and 
would be liable to pay 40%. The reason for this small adjustment is to simplify the 
scheme by using round numbers and would not have a considerable impact on the 
claimant.  
  

Council - 18 December 2019 51



Appendix C 

 
 

 
Household B is a single parent with 5 children; one of those children is under 5 so 
she is in a protected group, B works 16 hours per week and is in receipt of tax 
credits. 
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£475.80 £475.80 

Applicable amount £425.05 £425.05 

Excess income £50.75 £50.75 

Weekly CTAX Liability £25.67 £25.67 

Weekly CTS reduction £18.06 £20.54 

Weekly Council Tax due £7.61 £5.13 

Annual Council Tax due £395.72 £266.76 

 
Under the current scheme they would not be subject to 39% reduction, under the 
proposed scheme they would fall into band 2 and would have an 80% reduction and 
be expected to pay 20% of the liability. 
 
If Household B was on minimum wage and increased his hours to 18 per week and 
all other circumstances remained the same 
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£492.22 £492.22 

Applicable amount £425.05 £425.05 

Excess income £67.17 £67.17 

Weekly CTAX Liability £25.67 £25.67 

Weekly CTS reduction £15.59 £15.40 

Weekly Council Tax due £10.08 £10.27 

Annual Council Tax due £524.16 £534.04 

 
Under the current scheme they would not be subject to 39% reduction, under the 
proposed scheme they would fall into band 3 and would have a 60% reduction and 
be expected to pay 40% of the liability. 
 
Using Household B again, if one of the children who is over 5 left the property to live 
with her mother but all other income remained the same, working 18 hours per week, 
the only change would be a reduction to the applicable amount 
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£492.22 £492.22 

Applicable amount £358.15 £358.15 

Excess income £134.07 £134.07 

Weekly CTAX Liability £25.67 £25.67 

Weekly CTS reduction £5.56 £5.13 

Weekly Council Tax due £20.11 £20.54 

Annual Council Tax due £1045.72 £1068.08 

 
Under the current scheme they would not be subject to 39% reduction, under the 
proposed scheme he would fall into band 5 and would have a 20% reduction and be 
expected to pay 80% of the liability. 
 

Council - 18 December 2019 52



Appendix C 

 
 

 
Household C is couple with 1 child; one of the couple works and they are in receipt of 
tax credits. They are not in a protected group. 
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£271.14 £271.14 

Applicable amount £199.20 £199.20 

Excess income £71.94 £71.94 

Weekly CTAX Liability £30.78 £30.78 

Weekly CTS reduction £12.19 £10.77 

Weekly Council Tax due £18.59 £20.01 

Annual Council Tax due £966.68 £1040.52 

 
Under the current scheme they would be subject to 39% reduction, under the 
proposed scheme they would fall into band 3 and would have a 35% reduction and 
be expected to pay 65% of the liability. 
 
If the partner in household C started working and earned £55 per week and the other 
circumstances remained the same 
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£326.14 £326.14 

Applicable amount £199.20 £199.20 

Excess income £126.94 £126.94 

Weekly CTAX Liability £30.78 £30.78 

Weekly CTS reduction £7.16 £7.69 

Weekly Council Tax due £23.62 £23.09 

Annual Council Tax due £1228.24 £1200.68 

 
Under the current scheme they would be subject to 39% reduction, under the 
proposed scheme they would fall into band 4 and would have a 25% reduction and 
be expected to pay 75% of the liability. 
 
Using Household C again, if they had another child and the partner was no longer 
earning £55 per week but all other circumstances were the same 
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£271.14 £271.14 

Applicable amount £266.10 £266.10 

Excess income £5.04 £5.04 

Weekly CTAX Liability £30.78 £30.78 

Weekly CTS reduction £18.31 £18.47 

Weekly Council Tax due £12.47 £12.31 

Annual Council Tax due £648.44 £640.12 

 
Under the current scheme they would be subject to 39% reduction, under the 
proposed scheme they would fall into band 1 and would have a 60% reduction and 
be expected to pay 40% of the liability. 
 
 
 

Council - 18 December 2019 53



Appendix C 

 
 

Self Employed 
 
 
Claimant A is a single parent to a 5 year old son and 8 year old daughter, so would 
not be in a protected group. they are in receipt of Child Tax Credit, Working Tax 
Credit and Child Benefit and have been a self-employed product retailer since 2008; 
they are currently making a loss. 
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Weekly Self Employed Net 
Income 

£0.00 £205.25 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£138.94 £319.19 

Applicable amount £224.35 £224.35 

Excess income £0.00 £94.84 

Weekly CTAX Liability £35.48 £35.48 

Weekly CTS reduction £21.64 £12.42 

Annual amount to pay £719.68 £1199.12 

 
Under the old scheme they would be subject to the 39% reduction. Under the new 
scheme they would fall into band 4 and have a 35% reduction. 
 
Claimant B is a single person who is a self-employed gardener, currently earning 
£217.26 per week 
 

 Current Scheme Proposed Scheme 

Weekly Self Employed Net 
Income 

£217.26 £263.95 

Total Weekly Income (less 
disregards) 

£190.16 £236.85 

Applicable amount £73.10 £73.10 

Excess income £117.06 £163.75 

Weekly CTAX Liability £26.87 £26.87 

Weekly CTS reduction £2.11 £4.03 

Annual amount to pay £1287.52 £1187.68 

 
 Under the old scheme they would be subject to the 39% reduction. Under the new 
scheme they would fall into band 5 and have a 15% reduction 
 
 
 

Council - 18 December 2019 54



Appendix D 

MID SUSSEX DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Appendix D - Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Title of Policy/Service/Contract:  CHANGES TO THE EXISTING COUNCIL TAX 
SUPPORT SCHEME FOR 2020/21 AND THE INTRODUCTION OF A BANDED 
INCOME APPROACH 
 
Division:  Corporate Resources – Revenues and Benefits 
 
Lead Officer:  Kevin Stewart 
 
Date Assessment completed: 25 July 2019 – (revised December 2019) 
 
1.  SCOPING 
 

1.1 What are the aims of the policy, service/service change or contract? 
 
The Council Tax Benefit scheme (CTB) was abolished by the Welfare Reform Bill 
with effect from April 2013. This was replaced with a local Council Tax Support 
Scheme (CTS). The Council introduced a CTS scheme in the first year that mirrored 
the previous CTB system.  
 
From the 1 April 2014 the Council introduced a new Council Tax Support Scheme 
that for people of working age saw a baseline of 39%.  Apart from protected 
vulnerable groups everyone of working age, even those on Benefits, had to pay at 
least 39% towards their Council Tax. 
 
The Council’s original overall budget for CTS had been cut by Central Government 
with further cuts experienced over the last four years and confirmed to continue. It is 
for local councils to determine how to manage any funding gaps and any cuts can 
only be made to a CTS scheme for working age recipients. This is due to the strict 
guidelines from government to ensure support for pensioners’ remains at the same 
level as previously applied with CTB. This is delivered through a national framework 
of criteria and allowances.  The current MSDC scheme is fully covered from 
Government grant and as a result there is no contribution from MSDC taxpayers 
towards the scheme. 
 
The Government is also continuing with a national programme of welfare reform and 
it is appropriate to consider whether some of the changes to other welfare systems 
should be reflected in the Council’s local CTS. 
 
Mid Sussex District Council needs to annually review its CTSS. The scheme must be 
set each year by 11th March.  Any proposed changes must be fully consulted on. 
 

 

1.2 Who does the service/policy/contract affect? Who are the main customers 
(internal or external)?  
The main stakeholders are:- 
 
 -Existing CTS Recipients 
- Council Tax Payers 
- DWP 
- Citizens Advice 

Council - 18 December 2019 55



Appendix D 

- Housing Associations 
- Community Groups and Voluntary Sector 
- Precepting Authorities 
- Elected Members 
- Staff 
 

 

1.3 What equality information is available, including any evidence from 
engagement and analysis of use of services? 
 
Every applicant making a claim for Council Tax Support provides the following 
personal information: 
- The date of birth and sex of each person in the household 
- The income of each person in the household including non-dependents 
- The capital of each person in the household 
- Whether the person has a disability 
- Whether the person is in a same sex relationship  
The draft scheme has been subject to a consultation exercise including an on-line 
survey on the Council’s website and a stakeholder forum comprising Citizens Advice, 
the local Job Centre, foodbanks and social landlords.  Also, the other precepting 
authorities of West Sussex County Council and the Sussex Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s Office.  The current recipients of Council Tax Support identified as 
being worse off under the scheme by more than £6 per week were also targeted for 
their views.  Overall there were 7 respondents all of whom were White British, with 2 
registered disabled. 
The results of the consultation were to broadly support the proposed changes to the 
Scheme. 
 

 

1.4 What does this information tell us about the equality issues associated with 
the service and implications for the protected groups? 
 
Unless the CTS recipient is in one of the groups below:-  
 
• a disability premium within Council Tax Support or Working Tax Credit 
• the support group of Employment support allowance 
• DLA or PIP 
• Both Income Support and Carers allowance 
• A War Disablement Pension 
• Or any lone parent with a child under 5 years old 
  
They will pay at least 40% towards their Council Tax.   
 

 

1.5 Are contractors or partnerships used to deliver the service? No 
If No go to section 2. 
If yes, please refer to the guidance notes for completing impact assessments and 
complete the next three questions. 
 
Identify the contractors/partnerships used to deliver the service. 
What is their contribution to equality in service delivery and the promotion of 
equality? 
How are equality issues addressed through contractual arrangements and 
service level agreements? 

Council - 18 December 2019 56



Appendix D 

 

Council - 18 December 2019 57



Appendix D 
2. Assessment of Impact; Analysis and Action Planning 

 
Any gaps in information or provision, opportunities to promote equalities and good relations identified above need to be translated into SMART actions and 

recorded here.  These actions need to be delivered and monitored through the service planning process. 
 

Opportunity to promote equality, 
good relations and/or address 
barriers to service/differential impact 

Current action taken to address 
these 

Further actions required and 
timescales 

Lead 
Officer 

How will impact be 
measured 

The needs of different ethnic groups including white minorities, but also established white communities 

None identified. 
 
 

    

The needs of men and women.  Including taking account of pregnancy and maternity.  

None identified. 
 
 
 

   . 

The needs of disabled people  

 
Issue of treatment of people with a 
disability in the scheme.  
 
 

Disability benefit income is 
disregarded in full when 
calculating entitlement.  
Higher allowances are 
awarded when calculating 
support for those receiving 
disability benefits.  
 
Our scheme has a hardship 
fund that provides a safety 
net so that additional 
support can be provided for 
those in exceptional need.  
 
We have a track record of 
providing proactive and 
tailored support for those 
working age customers who 
struggle to make payments.  
 
We will continue to ensure 
our recovery procedures 

 The disabled people of Working 
age will be identified in a specific 
vulnerable group and if their 
circumstances allow will qualify for 
maximum Council Tax Support. No 
further specific negative impact is 
identified for those with disabilities. 
 
No further action required apart 
from monitor. 

Kevin 
Stewart 

Any impact will be 
monitored and action 
taken as appropriate. 

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

58



Appendix D 

identify cases where 
additional support might be 
required. 
 

 

The needs of people with a religion or belief  

None identified.     

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

59



Appendix D 
 

Opportunity to promote equality 
and/or barriers to service/differential 
impact 

Current action taken to address 
these 

Further actions required and 
timescales 

Lead 
Officer 

How will impact be 
measured 

The needs of gay men, lesbians, bisexuals and heterosexual people  

None identified. 
 

    

Issues from marriage and civil partnership 

None identified.     

The needs of different age groups, for example older and younger people  

 
Differential impact of the scheme 
between people of pension age and 
those of working age. 

People of pension age are 
protected and will not be subject 
to change under the new scheme. 
 
Could incentivise people back into 
work as earnings disregards and 
extended payments apply. 
 
Our scheme has a hardship fund 
that provides a safety net so that 
additional support can be 
provided for those in exceptional 
need. 
 
We have a track record of 
providing proactive and tailored 
support for those working age 
customers who struggle to make 
payments. We will continue to 
ensure our recovery procedures 
identify cases where additional 
support might be required. 

The scheme will discriminate on 
the grounds of age because of the 
Central Government requirement to 
protect pensioners. The National 
Pensioner Scheme treats them 
more favourably because 
allowances are more generous and 
100% maximum support applies 
where entitled. 
 
Working age people receive less 
CTS unless they are in a 
designated vulnerable group 
therefore have more Council Tax to 
pay. 

Kevin 
Stewart 

Any impact will be 
monitored and action 
taken as appropriate. 

The needs of transgender communities  

None identified.     

The needs of people who are disadvantaged by socio-economic factors such as low incomes, skill or living in a deprived area 

This is a means tested benefit which is 
designed to assist people on low 
incomes. We need to ensure people on 
low incomes are not adversely affected 

This is a means tested benefit 
which is designed to assist people 
on low incomes    

All people in the working age group 
unless in a specified vulnerable 
group who currently receive CTS 
will pay at least 40% of their 

Kevin 
Stewart 

The impact has 
already been 
assessed as part of 
the scheme – see 

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

60



Appendix D 

by the scheme Council Tax. We can continue to 
offer extra assistance outside of 
the Council Tax Support scheme 
through the use of the Section 13A 
hardship fund for people on low 
incomes who may be adversely 
affected. 
  

Appendix A of the 
report 

The needs of people who live in a rural area 

None identified.     

 

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

61



Appendix D 
 
3. Mid Sussex District Council Equality Impact Assessment Summary 

 
Key Findings Future Actions 

 All people in the working age group unless in a specified vulnerable 
group who currently pay CTS will pay at least 40% Council Tax. 

 It is a specific scheme that unless identified above does not 
differentiate between people in the district. 

 Very few people in a vulnerable group will be greatly disadvantaged 
by the introduction of the new scheme. 

 A Section 13A Hardship Fund is available to help people in need of 
further financial help. 

 
 

 No actions apart from continuing to make Section 13A Hardship 
Fund available. 

 Implement the scheme with protections as detailed in the report 
 
 

 
 
 
4. Signing off this assessment and action plan 
 
 
Signature …………Kevin Stewart…………………………………………  Date ………9 December 2019………….. 
Person undertaking the assessment 
 
 
Signature …………………………………………………………………  Date …………………………………….. 
Head of Service 
 
 
 
 
 
Please send your completed impact assessment to Neal Barton for publication on the website. 

C
ouncil - 18 D

ecem
ber 2019

62



COUNCIL TAXBASE 2020/21 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is for the Council to formally determine the domestic 
taxbase for the district for 2020/21.   

Summary 

2. The report proposes that the domestic taxbase for next year is 61,711.6, an increase 
of 1.65%.  The estimated collection rate is 99.4%. 

Recommendations  

3. (a)  Pursuant to the Head of Finance's report and in accordance with the Local 
Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2003, 
the amounts calculated by Mid Sussex District Council as its tax base for the 
whole area for the year 2020/21 shall be 61,711.6 and for each parish area for 
the year 2020/21 shall be: 

 

Albourne 309.2 
Ansty & Staplefield  1,117.7 
Ardingly 747.3 
Ashurst Wood 756.8 
Balcombe 843.8 
Bolney 646.3 
Burgess Hill 12,205.0 
Cuckfield 1,681.2 
East Grinstead 11,438.6 
Fulking 147.7 
Hassocks 3,468.6 
Haywards Heath 12,176.2 
Horsted Keynes 702.7 
Hurstpierpoint & Sayers Common 3,083.2 
Lindfield 2,836.5 
Lindfield Rural 1,509.9 
Newtimber 42.8 
Poynings 134.4 
Pyecombe 130.7 
Slaugham 1,366.4 
Turners Hill 625.4 
Twineham 146.4 
West Hoathly 940.0 
Worth 4,654.8 
  

Background 

4. The tax base is the divisor used to convert the total net amount required for local 
authority spending in the area to a level of council tax due for a band D property. 

REPORT OF: Head of Corporate Resources  
Contact Officer: Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources 

Email: Peter.Stuart@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477315 
Wards Affected: All 
Key Decision: No 
Report to: Council on 18 December 2019 

Council - 18 December 2019 63

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Peter.Stuart@midsussex.gov.uk


5. A tax base is required to be calculated for each parish area in order to allocate 
Special Items, which for this Council comprise the precepts of the Parish and Town 
Councils. 

6. It should be noted that setting the tax base is the sole responsibility of the District 
Council as the Billing Authority and we have given explanations of the individual 
parish taxbases where requested to the Town and Parish Councils.  

Method of Calculation 

7. The method of calculation is laid down in the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council 
Tax Base)(England) Regulations 2012. 

8. The starting point is the actual number of properties within each tax band as shown 
on the Council’s Valuation List as at 30 November 2019 (the “Relevant Day”) less the 
actual number of exemptions and discounts at that time.  The resulting figures are 
adjusted to take account of estimated movements within and between bands affecting 
2020/21 (i.e. changes from 1 December 2019 to 31 March 2021) to arrive at the 
number of chargeable properties within each band for the year.   

9. The numbers of chargeable properties within each tax band are expressed as band D 
equivalents.  The aggregate of all bands is multiplied by the estimated collection rate 
to determine the tax base for the area.  The collection rate represents the effect of 
losses on collection due to non-payment.  For 2020/21 the estimated rate is adjusted 
to 99.4%. 

10. The calculations referred to in the previous paragraphs are shown in Appendix 1. 

11. The 2020/21 tax base so calculated for the whole district is 61,711.6 which represents 
an increase of 1,004.1 (1.65%) on the tax base for the current year.  The effect at 
parish area level ranges from a decrease of –4.9 to an increase of 288.3 and in 
percentage terms from –0.17% to +10.64%. 

12. The number of property equivalents included in the tax base has risen by 993.9 
(1.6%), with a increase in exemptions (64.0; 8.9%), decrease in 50% discounts (-1.0, 
-1.3%) and increase in 25% discounts (205.0; 1.1%), decrease in council tax support 
discounts (-45.6, -1.3%), which has meant that the net number of band D equivalent 
chargeable dwellings has increased by 924.7 (1.7%). 

Policy Context 

13. It is a legal requirement to set a taxbase for each financial year. 

Financial Implications 

14. The financial implications are detailed within the body of the report.  

Risk Management Implications 

15. There is a risk that the projections within the report are not accurate to a significant 
degree although best endeavours have been used to research, quantify and 
extrapolate the data upon which the projections are based.  This risk can be mitigated 
by the monitoring of both databases throughout the year, although corrective action 
can only be undertaken on a year to year basis rather than within the year. 

Council - 18 December 2019 64



Equality and Customer Service Implications  

16. This report has no such implications. 

Other Material Implications 

17. There are no legal implications as a direct consequence of this report. 

Background Papers 

Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base)(England) Regulations 2012 and Council 
Tax (Exempt Dwellings) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012. 
Technical Reforms to Council Tax Report and Council Tax Discount Scheme for Mid Sussex 
Report, Scrutiny Committee for Leader and Service Delivery,16th August 2012. 
The Town and Parish Councils have been provided with the tax base information. 

Council - 18 December 2019 65



Appendix 1 
 

Table 1: Mid Sussex Tax Base 2020/21 - Analysed by chargeable dwellings 
 

          

 band A band B band C band D  band E band F band G band H  Total  

No of dwellings          

Property equivalents*  2,180.03 6,886.70 14,050.78 16,910.79 11,324.55 8,422.86 4,624.70 397.96 64,798.37 

Exemptions (various 
classes)  -126.00 -158.00 -169.00 -154.00 -88.00 -56.00 -31.00 -1.00 -783.00 

Disabled reductions 7.00 32.00 39.00 -24.00 2.00 -30.00 -5.00 -21.00 0.00 

Chargeable 2,061.03 6,760.70 13,920.78 16,732.79 11,238.55 8,336.86 4,588.70 375.96 64,015.37 

           

Single discounts 1,191.00 3,987.00 5,055.00 4,574.00 2,512.00 1,305.00 602.00 34.00 19,260.00 

Two discounts 1.00 2.00 6.00 6.00 9.00 14.00 30.00 9.00 77.00 

Council Tax Support 
discounts ** 305.89 1,121.82 1,192.78 645.10 143.35 35.05 11.86 0.95 3,456.80 

           
Net chargeable 1,456.89 4,641.13 11,461.25 14,941.19 10,462.70 7,968.56 4,411.34 362.01 55,705.07 

            

Ratio to Band D 6/9ths 7/9ths 8/9ths 9/9ths 11/9ths 13/9ths 15/9ths 18/9ths  

Band D equivalent 971.26 3,609.77 10,187.78 14,941.19 12,787.74 11,510.14 7,352.23 724.02 62,084.1 

          

   Total  multiplied by Collection Rate of 99.4%   61,711.6 

 
* Includes estimates of effect of new dwellings and other changes to the valuation list, and increases for local 

premiums for long-term empty dwellings.   
** Reductions under the local council tax support reduction scheme. 

Council - 18 December 2019 66



 Appendix 2 
 

Table 2: Mid Sussex Tax Base 2020/21 - Analysed by Parish Area 
 

          

Parish area band A band B band C band D  band E band F band G band H  Total  

          

Albourne 3.4 7.2 31.8 71.7 34.7 42.0 105.0 13.4 309.2 

Ansty & Staplefield 16.3 24.7 101.1 158.9 230.3 206.4 322.8 57.2 1,117.7 

Ardingly 15.1 19.4 76.7 183.1 158.2 169.4 106.0 19.4 747.3 

Ashurst Wood 6.9 18.7 96.9 179.0 156.3 135.3 161.7 2.0 756.8 

Balcombe 12.6 39.9 74.5 137.7 123.5 226.5 206.7 22.4 843.8 

Bolney 15.6 23.1 19.0 85.1 82.8 146.1 226.4 48.2 646.3 

Burgess Hill 147.8 694.2 2,931.2 3,637.2 2,558.0 1,595.6 620.6 20.4 12,205.0 

Cuckfield 23.4 43.4 189.2 215.7 406.0 294.3 460.5 48.7 1,681.2 

East Grinstead 269.1 760.9 2,034.6 2,510.8 2,527.5 2,353.8 946.6 35.3 11,438.6 

Fulking 4.1 5.1 15.7 15.9 26.7 18.7 50.1 11.4 147.7 

Hassocks 23.2 201.6 422.2 977.1 1,008.5 466.4 346.2 23.4 3,468.6 

Haywards Heath 137.6 1,159.0 2,555.8 3,113.6 1,789.7 2,201.7 1,178.6 40.2 12,176.2 

Horsted Keynes 5.6 16.6 75.2 121.3 109.6 162.0 179.6 32.8 702.7 

Hurstpierpoint and 
Sayers Common 45.1 122.8 381.6 705.4 807.9 449.5 520.2 50.7 3,083.2 

Lindfield 6.2 143.5 200.7 552.6 533.6 777.2 575.0 47.7 2,836.5 

Lindfield Rural 16.2 44.4 129.8 245.4 358.6 410.6 246.8 58.1 1,509.9 

Newtimber 0.5 5.5 13.4 6.7 3.4 1.4 9.9 2.0 42.8 

Poynings 4.1 13.7 27.6 13.4 20.7 14.7 32.3 7.9 134.4 

Pyecombe 2.5 3.6 6.9 27.1 17.3 32.7 40.6 0.0 130.7 

Slaugham 36.9 107.9 228.3 277.2 234.0 276.0 152.4 53.7 1,366.4 

Turners Hill 129.3 28.8 112.7 113.0 81.0 89.7 63.4 7.5 625.4 

Twineham 5.1 2.1 7.8 17.6 26.4 21.2 46.3 19.9 146.4 

West Hoathly 17.8 22.3 102.4 179.9 220.9 170.0 171.6 55.1 940.0 

Worth 21.0 79.7 291.5 1,306.2 1,195.4 1,179.9 538.8 42.3 4,654.8 

                    

Total 965.4 3,588.1 10,126.6 14,851.6 12,711.0 11,441.1 7,308.1 719.7 61,711.6 

 

Council - 18 December 2019 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS 2020/21 
 

REPORT OF: Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

Contact Officer: Lucinda Joyce – Senior Democratic Services Officer  
 Email: lucinda.joyce@midsussex.gov.uk  Tel: 01444 477225 
Wards Affected: All 
Key Decision No 
Report to Council - 18 December 2019 

 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To approve the Programme of Meetings for 2020/21. 
 
Recommendations  
 
 
2. It is recommended that the Programme (attached to this report as Appendix 1) be 

approved.   
 
 
 
Background  
 
3. Each year the Council sets a Programme of Meetings, as attached at Appendix 1, which 

has been prepared on the same basis as the previous year unless otherwise instructed. 
 
4. Eleven training sessions for all Members have also been included throughout the year. 
 
 
Financial and Other Material Implications 
 

5. This report has no financial or other material implications.   
 

Background Papers 
 

6. None 

Council - 18 December 2019 69

Agenda Item 10

mailto:lucinda.joyce@midsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
                   Programme of Meetings 2020-21           APPENDIX 1 

Date Meeting Time 

Wed 13 May Annual Council 7.00 pm 

Thu 14 May District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Tue 19 May Member Training 6.30 pm 

Thu 21 May  Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Mon 1 Jun Cabinet 4.00 pm 

Mon 1 Jun Standards Committee 6.30 pm 

Thu 11 Jun Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Tue 16 Jun Member Training 6.30 pm 

Wed 17 Jun Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance 7.00 pm 

Thu 18 Jun District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Wed 24 Jun Charity Trustees 6.45 pm 

Wed 24 Jun  Council 7.00 pm 

Mon 29 Jun Cabinet Grants Panel 4.30 pm 

Tue 30 Jun Licensing Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 1 Jul Scrutiny Committee for  Housing, Planning and Economic 
Growth 

7.00 pm 

Thu 2 Jul Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Mon 6 Jul Cabinet 4.00 pm 

Wed 8 Jul Scrutiny Committee for Community, Customer Services and 
Service Delivery 

7.00 pm 

Mon 13 Jul Cabinet Grants Panel (Possible date) 4.30 pm 

Tues 14 Jul Member Training 6.30 pm 

Thu 16 Jul District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Tue 21 Jul Audit Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 22 Jul  Council    7.00 pm 

Thu 23 Jul Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Thu 13 Aug Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Thu 20 Aug District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Mon 24 Aug Cabinet Grants Panel (Possible date) 4.30 pm 

Wed 2 Sep Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance 7.00 pm 

Thu 3 Sep Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Tue 8 Sep Member Training 6.30 pm 

Mon 14 Sep  Cabinet 4.00pm 

Tue 15 Sep Audit Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 16 Sep Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning and Economic 
Growth 

7.00 pm 

Thu 17 Sep  District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Tue 22 Sep Licensing Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 23 Sep Scrutiny Committee for Community, Customer Services and 
Service Delivery 

7.00 pm 

Thu 24 Sep Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Tue 29 Sep Cabinet Grants Panel 4.30 pm 

Wed 30 Sep Charity Trustees (Annual Report) 6.45 pm 

Wed 30 Sep Council   7.00 pm 

Tue 6 Oct Member Training 6.30 pm 

Thu 8 Oct District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Mon 12 Oct Cabinet 4.00 pm 

Mon 12 Oct Standards Committee 6.30 pm 

Thu 15 Oct Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Mon 19 Oct Cabinet Grants Panel (Possible date) 4.30 pm 

Tue 3 Nov Member Training 6.30 pm 

Wed 4 Nov Council 7.00 pm 

Thu 5 Nov Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 11 Nov  Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance 7.00 pm 

Council - 18 December 2019 71



 
Thu 12 Nov District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Tue 17 Nov Audit Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 18 Nov Scrutiny Committee for Community, Customer Services and 
Service Delivery 

7.00 pm 

Mon 23 Nov Cabinet Grants Panel (Possible Date) 4.30 pm 

Wed 25 Nov Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning and Economic 
Growth 

7.00 pm 

Thu 26 Nov Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Mon 30 Nov Cabinet   4.00 pm 

Tue 1 Dec Licensing Committee 7.00 pm 

Tue 8 Dec Member Training 6.30 pm 

Wed 9 Dec Council 7.00 pm 

Thu 10 Dec District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Mon 14 Dec Cabinet Grants Panel 4.30 pm 

Thu 17 Dec Planning Committee      7.00 pm 

Mon 11 Jan  Cabinet 4.00 pm 

Tue 12 Jan Member Training 6.30 pm 

Wed 13 Jan Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance 7.00 pm 

Thu 14 Jan Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 20 Jan Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning and Economic 
Growth 

7.00 pm 

Thu 21 Jan District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Tue 26 Jan Cabinet Grants Panel (Possible Date) 4.30 pm 

Wed 27 Jan Council 7.00 pm 

Tue 2 Feb Licensing Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 3 Feb Scrutiny Committee for Community, Customer Services and 
Service Delivery 

7.00 pm 

Thu 4 Feb   Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Mon 8 Feb Cabinet 4.00 pm 

Tue 9 Feb Member Training 6.30 pm 

Thu 18 Feb District Planning Committee     7.00 pm 

Tue 23 Feb Cabinet Grants Panel  4.30 pm 

Wed 24 Feb Council (budget) 7.00 pm 

Thu 25 Feb Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Tue 2 Mar Audit Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 3 Mar Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance 7.00 pm 

Tue 9 Mar Member Training 6.30 pm 

Mon 15 Mar Cabinet 4.00 pm 

Mon 15 Mar Standards Committee 6.30 pm 

Wed 17 Mar Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning and Economic 
Growth 

7.00 pm 

Thu 18 Mar Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Wed 24 Mar Scrutiny Committee for Community, Customer Services and 
Service Delivery 

7.00 pm 

Thu 25 Mar District Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Wed 31 Mar Council     7.00 pm 

Thu 8 Apr Planning Committee      7.00 pm  

Tue 20 Apr Member Training 6.30 pm 

Thu 22 Apr District  Planning Committee 2.00 pm 

Thu 29 Apr Planning Committee 7.00 pm 

Mon 10 May Cabinet 4.00 pm 

Wed 12 May Annual Council 7.00 pm 

 

Council - 18 December 2019 72



RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CABINET – 18 NOVEMBER 2019 

 
 

ANSTY VILLAGE CENTRE TRUST 

Cabinet considered a number of proposals in relation to the development of a new combined 
Village Hall, Sports Pavilion and Social Club at the Council’s Ansty Recreation Ground, 
including the allocation of £100k of general reserve to the Scheme.   

Summary 

1.  The Cabinet report provides some project history, information regarding the current 
 budget, funding available and financial shortfall; and details of the various lease 
 arrangements needed to enable project delivery.   

Recommendations 

2. That Council approve the grant of £100,000 to the Ansty Village Centre Trust 
 funded from General Reserve;  

 
 

BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2019/20 – HALF YEAR PROGRESS REPORT 

Cabinet considered the progress on the Revenue Budget, Capital Programme and Treasury 
Management for 2019/20. 

Summary 

1. The forecast revenue outturn position for 2019/20 at the end of September is showing 
a projected net underspend of £43,000 against the original estimate, after transfers 
totalling £457,000 to Specific Reserve, as approved by Council on 25 September 
2019. This underspend mainly relates to additional income for Development 
Management Fees, Garden Waste as well as salary savings, mainly offset by 
pressures in Temporary Accommodation, Building Control fee income and Town 
Centre supplementary rents. 

Recommendations  

2.  That Council approve: 

(i) that £75,000 be transferred to Specific Reserve from General Reserve to 
cover the cost of Gatwick Studies as detailed in paragraph 21 of the 
Cabinet report; 

(ii) that £90,000 One Public Estate government grant income in respect of 
Burgess Hill Station Quarter Project be transferred to Specific Reserve 
as detailed in paragraph 22 of the Cabinet report; 

(iii) that £17,484 grant income relating to Local Authority EU Exit preparation 
Grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 23 of 
the Cabinet report; 

(iv) that £24,737 grant income relating to Individual Electoral registration 
(IER) in 2019/20 be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in 
paragraph 24 of the Cabinet report; 

Council - 18 December 2019 73

Agenda Item 11



(v) that £9,225 grant income relating to new Burdens Business Rates be 
transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 25 of the 
Cabinet report;  

(vi) that £68,762 to meet the costs arising from St. Francis, Haywards Heath 
– Anscombe Wood Regeneration be transferred to Specific Reserve as 
detailed in paragraph 26 of the Cabinet report; 

(vii) the variations to the Capital Programme contained in paragraph 36 of 
the Cabinet report; in accordance with the Council’s Financial 
Procedure rule B3. 

 

Council - 18 December 2019 74


	Agenda
	3 To confirm Minutes of the meeting of Council held on 6 November 2019.
	Minutes

	7 Review of Members' Allowances 2020/2021.
	Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel on the Review of Members' Allowances 2020/21.

	8 Changes to the Existing Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/21 and the Introduction of a Banded Income Approach.
	Appendix A - Consultation Feedback
	Appendix B - Proposed Council Tax Support Scheme
	Appendix C - Individual Sample Calculations
	Appendix D - Equality Impact Assessment

	9 Council Taxbase 2020/21.
	10 Programme of Meetings 2020/2021.
	Appendix 1 - Programme of Meetings 2020-2021

	11 Recommendations from Cabinet held on 18 November 2019.



